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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial
Bank, Limited (hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Bank hereinafter as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Principal Activities
The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The principal activities of the Bank are provision of
banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank's subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the

Bank” to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 27.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately HK$174,000.

Shares Issued
No shares were issued by the Bank during the year. Details of the issued shares of the Bank are set out in Note 34 to the Financial

Statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Board of Directors

Chairman: Chen Xiaozhou (appointed as Director and elected as Chairman of the Board of Directors
effective from 30 May 2016)
Yue Yi* (resigned as Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors

effective from 30 May 2016)

Vice Chairman: Fang Hongguang

Directors: Wu Songyun” (appointed effective from 30 May 2016)
Liang Qiang” (appointed effective from 30 May 2016)
Wang Tong Sai (appointed effective from 30 May 2016)
Chan Sai Ming

Lau Hon Chuen*

Lan Hong Tsung, David*

Chang Hsin Kang*

Li Jiuzhong” (resigned effective from 30 May 2016)
Sui Yang” (resigned effective from 30 May 2016)

* Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors (continued)

Save for Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou, Fang Hongguang, Yue Yi** and Li Jiuzhong** being also directors of a subsidiary of the Bank,
other directors of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Zhao Hongwei

Sun Jiandong Cheng Zeyu Zhang Zaiming Shen Jiamu
Zhang Changyi Ye Yonggang Leung Ka Chun Hui Hoi Suen Ng Kwok Yuen
Lin Jingzhen** Wang Jiangiang** Xiao Wei** Gong Huazhang** Cheng Po Kee**

Chow Tak Man**

** Resigned during the year.

In accordance with Article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Mr. Chan Sai Ming and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David retire by

rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 82 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou, Wu Songyun, Liang Qiang and Wang

Tong Sai retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities
At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Bank or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to the Group's business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Bank or his/her connected entity had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were

entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Bank against any
liability incurred by him/her in relation to the Bank. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of Directors against liability

which may lawfully be insured by the Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 comply with the requirements set out in the Banking

(Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and

offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2017 annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Xiaozhou
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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Corporate Governance

The Group strives to achieve high standards of corporate governance and has followed CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally

Incorporated Authorised Institutions” of the Supervisory Policy Manual issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Board of Directors and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business.
Before the shares transfer on 30 May 2016, it comprised eight Directors. Among them, two were Executive Directors, while the
remaining six were Non-executive Directors. Of the six Non-executive Directors, three were Independent Non-executive Directors.
After the shares transfer, it comprises nine Directors with a variety of different experience and professionalism. Among them, four are
Executive Directors, while the remaining five are Non-executive Directors. Of the five Non-executive Directors, three are Independent
Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board
meetings were held in the year with attendance rate of 100% in the year. The Management, led by the Chief Executive, is responsible
for formulating and implementing detailed programmes to effect the approved strategies and policies, and providing detailed reports
on the Group’s performance to the Board on a regular basis to enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively. In order to
focus its attention on strategic and material issues that have significant impact on the Group’s finances and long-term development,
the Board has newly set up the Executive Committee, Strategic and Development Committee, Connected Transaction Committee
and disbanded the former Executive Committee after the shares transfer. It currently has set up the following six committees to

oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the committees are given below:

Executive Committee

Under the authority given by the Board, the Executive Committee is responsible for the overall management of the Group, including
overall operation and essential executive management, in order to facilitate the flow and effectiveness of the overall collaboration,
businesses and management of the Group. Its main duties include:

- management of the overall operation and business of the Group;

- coordination and determination of all kinds of matters in the collaboration between the Bank and its subsidiaries and between the

Group and its holding company;

- formulation of the Group’s development strategies for the discussion and approval by the Strategy and Development Committee,

and monitoring the execution and implementation of the Group’s development strategy after the approval by the Board;

- proposal of the Group’s annual business and capital plans, budgets and other strategic measures for the Board’s approval and

monitor the execution and implementation of the aforesaid plans, budgets and strategies thereafter;

- establishment and maintenance of effective financial, operational and management control systems for the Group’s business
operation and development with full compliance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements; and discussion and approval of
the Group’s systems and rules of implementation in accordance with the policies of the regulatory authority and the holding

company;
- discussion and review of other policies which may have material impact on the Group; and

- other than the duties as mentioned above, management, discussion, approval, suggestion and monitoring of other matters
beyond the duties and authorities of other committees under the Board, including information technology management, human

resource strategies, building up corporate culture, etc.

During the year, members of the Executive Committee included Mr. Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman), Mr. Fang Hongguang, Mr. Wang
Tong Sai, Mr. Chan Sai Ming, Mr. Sun Jiandong, Mr. Qu Helei, Mr. Xiao Wogen, Mr. Luo Hanglu and Mr. Cheng Zeyu, of which Mr.

Chen Xiaozhou, Mr. Fang Hongguang, Mr. Wang Tong Sai and Mr. Chan Sai Ming were the executive directors of the Bank.

14
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Strategy and Development Committee

Strategy and Development Committee is responsible for the consideration and suggestion of the medium and long term development

strategies of the Group. Its main duties include:
- preparation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies for the Board’s approval;

- examination, proposing, monitoring, review and update of the Bank’s medium and long strategies and recommend the Board on

necessary adjustments of the strategies;

- examination of the formulation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies and ensure all the potential plans in a certain

selective scope have been adequately considered;

- monitoring the implementation of medium and long term strategies in accordance with established standards and provide

directive guidance to the management on the implementation;

- examination of material merge and acquisition plans proposed by the management and advise the management on the plans;

and

- advice to the Board on the Bank's major investment, capital expenditure and strategic commitment and monitoring the

implementation of the aforesaid.

During the year, members of the Strategy and Development Committee included Mr. Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman), Mr. Fang

Hongguang and Mr. Wang Tong Sai. All of them were the executive directors of the Bank.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and the financial reporting process;

- internal control system;

- performance of internal audit functions and internal auditors;

- appointment of external auditor and evaluation of external auditor’s qualifications, independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards and legal and regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and
- enhancement of the corporate governance framework.

Before the shares transfer on 30 May 2016, the members of Audit Committee were Mr. Lau Hon Chuen (Chairman), Mr. Lan Hong
Tsung David and Ms. Sui Yang. All were Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong
Tsung David were Independent Non-executive Directors. After the shares transfer, the members of Audit Committee were Mr. Lau
Hon Chuen (Chairman), Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David and Mr. Liang Qiang. All were Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them,

Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David were Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk management of the Bank in the

following areas:
- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Bank and determination of the Bank’s risk profile;
- identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by the Bank;

- the review and assessment of the adequacy of the Bank’s risk management policies, system and internal control, including the

Bank’s compliance with prudential, legal and regulatory requirements governing the businesses of the Bank;
- review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Bank; and
- review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions.

Before the shares transfer on 30 May 2016, the members of the Risk Management Committee were Mr. Li Jiuzhong (Chairman), Mr.
Fang Hongguang, Mr. Chang Hsin Kang, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Chan Sai Ming. All were Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr.
Chang Hsin Kang and Mr. Lau Hon Chuen were Independent Non-executive Directors. After the shares transfer, the members of the
Risk Management Committee were Mr. Wu Songyun (Chairman), Mr. Liang Qiang, Mr. Fang Hongguang, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr.
Lan Hong Tsung David. All were Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David were

Independent Non-executive Directors.

Connected Transactions Committee

The Connected Transaction Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of connected transaction of the Bank in

the following areas:
- Review and approve the Bank's connected transaction policy;

- Regularly receives connected transactions information and fully understands the management of connected transactions of the

Bank and gives guidance; and

- In accordance with the provisions of laws and administrative regulations and fair and equitable business principles, timely

approve the bank’s major connected transactions.

The members of the Connected Transaction Committee during the year were Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David (Chairman), Mr. Lau Hon
Chuen and Mr. Chan Sai Ming. All were Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David and Mr. Lau Hon Chuen were

Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises five members, including two Non-executive Directors, Mr. Wu Songyun and
Mr. Liang Qiang, and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chang Hsin Kang, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan
Hong Tsung David. It was chaired by Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David. With effect from 30 May 2016, Ms. Sui Yang, a Non-executive
Director of the Board, resigned as the member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chang Hsin Kang, Mr. Wu Songyun

and Mr. Liang Qiang were appointed as members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee at 30 May 2016. The Independent

Non-executive Directors represent 66.7% and 60% of the Committee members prior and subsequent to such changes respectively.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group in, among others,

the following areas:
- human resources, remuneration strategy and incentive framework of the Group;

- selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and certain senior executives as designated by the Board from

time to time (defined as “Senior Management”);

- structure, size and composition (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,

geographical location, professional experience, skills and knowledge etc.) of the Board and Board Committees;
- remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior Management and Key Personnel;
- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees; and

- training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior Management.

Key tasks performed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2016 included the approval, review and proposal to the

Board on the following according to the responsibilities and authorities:

- formulation, review and amendment on major human resources and remuneration policies, including the review of the

“Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and “Deferral Variable Remuneration Policy”; as well as the review of “Senior Management”,

“Key Personnel”, “Key Employee Group” and “Risk Control Personnel” as delineated in the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration

System” published by Hong Kong Monetary Authority;
- performance appraisal result of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2015;

- proposal on staff bonus for year 2015, salary adjustment for year 2016 and special bonus of the Senior Management and Key

Personnel;
- key performance indicators of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2016;
- review of the Mandate, Working Rules and Standing Agenda of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
- review of Directors’ Independency Policy;
- election of Directors for 2016;
- Directors’ independency report for 2015;
- self-evaluation report of the Board and Board Committees for 2015;
- consideration of the matters relating to the adjustment and appointment of the Directors of the Group;

- consideration of the appointment and resignation of Key Personnel.

There were three Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings held during 2016. The attendance rate of all the Directors was

93.3%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound
remuneration management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance

their performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on

a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

®  “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the

HKMA's “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”:

* “Senior Management”: The senior executives directly managed by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the
firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including Managing Director, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives,
Executive Committee Members, Heads of Executive Committee Working Group, Chief Strategy Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Technology Officer, Board Secretary, Head of Audit Department and other particular

personnel.

+ “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, Head of Treasury,

as well as Head of Risk Management Department.

® Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfill the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration
Policy of the Group, Human Resources Division is responsible for proposing the Remuneration Policy of the Group and will
seek consultation of the risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance if necessary, in
order to balance the needs for staff motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The proposed
Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board
of Directors for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors will seek opinions from

other Board Committees (e.g. Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

1. Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to formalise the performance management at the
levels of the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be cascaded down under the framework of
balanced scorecard whereby the performance of the Senior Management and different units (including business units, risk
control units and other units) would be assessed from the perspectives of financial, customer, building blocks/key tasks,
human capital, risk management and compliance. For individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will be
tied to their job requirements through the performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals will be
appraised on their achievement against targets, their contribution towards performance of their units and fulfilment of risk
management duties and compliance, etc. Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but the risk exposure
involved during the course of work could also be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal operation of the

Group.

. Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on the risk adjustment method of
the Group, the key risk modifiers of the bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of the
Group. Credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance risk and reputation risk
form the framework of the risk adjustment method. The size of the variable remuneration pool of the Bank is calculated
according to the risk adjusted performance results approved by the Board and is subject to its discretion. This method
ensures the Bank to fix the Bank’s variable remuneration pool after considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain

effective risk management through the remuneration mechanism.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the
other for individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibilities and functions of the staff with the
prerequisite that balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion. Generally speaking, the higher the job
grades and/or the greater the responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage

the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on the
affordability of the Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above, performance

assessment criteria include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.

According to the Bank Bonus Funding Policy, the size of the variable remuneration pool of the Bank is determined by the
Board on the basis of the financial performance of the Bank and the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets
under the long-term development of the Bank. Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination
process. The size of the pool is reached based on pre-defined formulaic calculations but the Board can make discretionary
adjustment to it if deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the Bank’s performance is relatively weak (e.g.
failed to meet the threshold performance level), no variable remuneration will be paid out that year in principle. However, the

Board reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
performance of the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is attaching to, and the assessment of
which should include risk modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel are
determined by the achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for front-line
risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting and performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability of
performance-based remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance of the unit and

the individual staff, the higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)
® Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value
creation of the Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required
to be deferred in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a progressive approach
towards deferral. The longer the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff, the higher the job grade or the

higher amount of the variable remuneration, the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long term value creation of the Group. The vesting
conditions are closely linked to the annual performance of the Group in the next 3 years and the individual behaviour of the
staff concerned. When the Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement, the deferred variable remuneration
would be vested following the corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed fraud, or any financial
or non-financial factors used in performance measurement or variable pay determination are later proven to have been
manifestly worse than originally understood in a particular year, or individual behaviour / management style pose negative
impacts to the business unit and even the Group, including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, etc.,

the unvested portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.

° Disclosure on remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the

HKMA to disclosure information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.
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Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower
E I ﬁﬁ( 1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 27 to 239, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Bank determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower
E I ﬁﬁ( 1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

®  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 December

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net trading gain

Net loss on financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Net gain on other financial assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before impairment
allowances
Net charge of impairment allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit

Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments
on investment properties

Net gain from disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and equipment

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Dividends

B
Notes 2016 2015
BT AEETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
7,550,115 8,746,484
(3,015,306) (4,026,334)
6 4,534,809 4,720,150
1,633,666 1,446,527
(61,595) (89,577)
7 1,572,071 1,356,950
8 134,695 54,159
(7,708) (6,382)
9 192,772 336,421
10 27,059 42,408
6,453,698 6,503,706
11 (486,075) (633,324)
5,967,623 5,870,382
12 (2,656,577) (2,632,162)
3,311,046 3,238,220
13 29,340 121,046
14 4,136 19,246
3,344,522 3,378,512
15 (597,145) (481,735)
2,747,377 2,896,777
16 - 542,500

The notes on pages 27 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

Profit for the year

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently

to income statement:

Premises:
Revaluation of premises
Deferred tax

Defined benefit plan:

Actuarial losses on remeasurement

Deferred tax

Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to

income statement:

Available-for-sale securities:

Change in fair value of available-for-sale

securities

Release upon disposal of available-for-sale
securities reclassified to income

statement
Amortisation with respect to

available-for-sale securities transferred
to held-to-maturity securities reclassified

to income statement
Deferred tax

Cash flow hedge:

Change in fair value of hedging instruments

Deferred tax

Change in fair value of hedging instruments

under net investment hedges
Currency translation difference

Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

2016 2015
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

2,747,377 2,896,777
(64,385) 374,898
43,529 10,657
(20,856) 385,555
(1,700) -
280 -
(1,420) -
(22,276) 385,555
(474,312) 280,066
(91,985) (256,051)
1,057 1,054
109,313 (15,548)
(455,927) 9,521
(64,130) -
16,032 -
(48,098) -

- 44,284
(634,878) (589,711)
(1,138,903) (535,906)
(1,161,179) (150,351)
1,586,198 2,746,426

527 £ 239 H [t E AL &5 The notes on pages 27 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

T ZAHREY -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Current tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Assets held for sale

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Total liabilities

29

Pt
Notes 2016 2015
BRI AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
19 52,327,583 54,244,805
14,679,699 7,056,785
20 3,680,401 6,963,572
21 896,476 696,266
22 192,119,592 168,924,014
24 76,935,082 55,407,983
25 383,830 414,736
26 6,929,407 7,008,020
- 46,690
32 100,652 5,962
27 879,987 4,295,231
33 - 132,729
348,932,709 305,196,793
30,450,210 30,961,174
28 3,223,456 4,575,356
21 934,244 302,944
29 257,527,530 218,261,983
30 1,095,937 -
31 15,908,708 12,974,800
371,981 187,530
32 735,675 812,352
33 - 21,884
310,247,741 268,098,023
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JEE Fang Hongguang
HH Director

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

As at 31 December

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

fifE
Notes 2016 2015
ARTIL AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
34 3,144,517 3,144,517
35,540,451 33,954,253
38,684,968 37,098,770
348,932,709 305,196,793

The notes on pages 27 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and signed on behalf of the Board by:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

4t
Reserves
RIECae
HEHAE
EBH R
Reserve for
R fair value a0
HEffif#f# changes of B
[:Z NI N 17 ] Premises available-  Cash flow B gEH* MR RTFEF EAGET
Share Capital  revaluation for-sale Hedges Regulatory  Translation Retained Total
capital reserve reserve securities reserve reserve* reserve earnings equity
BT BT AT AT AT AT AT BIETT AT
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
#2015 1H1H At 1 January 2015 3,144,517 605 5,937,109 206,908 - 2,173,590 714,819 22,717,296 34,894,844
R R F Profit for the year - - - - - - - 2,896,777 2,896,777
Hfth e mlgss : Other comprehensive
income:
B Premises - - 385,555 - - - - - 385,555
AT R R Available-for-sale
securities - - - 9,521 - - - - 9,521
PR apL S aiptc Change in fair value
TEZARE#EL of hedging
instruments under
net investment
hedges - - - - - - 44,284 - 44,284
R R Currency translation
difference - - (8,455) (2,675) - - (578,581) - (589,711)
B A LEEE Total comprehensive
income - - 377,100 6,846 - - (534,297) 2,896,777 2,746,426
7 Release upon disposal
of premises - - (459,399) - - - - 459,399 -
R S R Transfer from retained
earnings - - - - - 82,083 - (82,083) -
i Bk 16) Dividends (Note 16) - - - - - - - (542,500) (542,500)
22015412 A 31 H At 31 December 2015 3,144,517 605 5,854,810 213,754 - 2,255,673 180,522 25,448,889 37,098,770
201641 H1H At 1 January 2016 3,144,517 605 5,854,810 213,754 - 2,255,673 180,522 25,448,889 37,098,770
AR Profit for the year - - - - - - - 2,747,377 2,747,377
Hfth e mElgss Other comprehensive
income:
B Premises - - (20,856) - - - - - (20,856)
SRE R R AT Actuarial losses on
ZHEEEE defined benefit
plan - - - - - - - (1,420) (1,420)
n gk A Available-for-sale
securities - - - (455,927) - - - - (455,927)
j Ve Pt Syl Change in fair value
THZAMEEE of hedging
instruments under
cash flow hedges - - - - (48,098) - - - (48,098)
B R Currency translation
difference - - (10,321) (4,692) - - (619,865) - (634,878)
el Total comprehensive
income - - (31,177)  (460,619) (48,098) - (619,865) 2,745,957 1,586,198
TR o HH B 2 Release upon disposal
of premises - - (161,352) - - - - 161,352 -
B R Oy R | Transfer to retained
earnings - - - - - (244,450) - 244,450 -
#2016 4£ 12 H 31 [ At 31 December 2016 3,144,517 605 5,662,281  (246,865) (48,098) 2,011,223  (439,343) 28,600,648 38,684,968

* PRbEE GRS 30 St EOTIR UK
(B S Be e S KB o B A
F B E G FT —ime 2 FCBfE
RAGRK AR T TR ) -

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses

or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.

%27 2 230 B AsEE
R 2R T

H4#5; The notes on pages 27 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HEEHERESFR Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FEE
BE 12 H 31 HiHFEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2016 2015
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
RERBIHESRE Cash flows from operating activities
BRETEEIRSY R /A Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before
taxation 35(a) (5,651,317) 3,079,357
STEEREH Hong Kong profits tax paid (394,116) (464,589)
Bl (Z) BIMIIER Overseas profits tax refund/(paid) 3,898 (112,701)
TBEEHS ORH) /FRAIEEE  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities (6,041,535) 2,502,067
REREBZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
WA WISE ~ B30F R Purchase of properties, plant and equipment 26 (211,821) (74,240)
A& Y)E Purchase of investment properties 25 - (2,903)
HEYE - 30 KEHETSECE Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 187,047 398,673
HEFEEY TS OE Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties - 986,800
BEEE S CRY) /FASSE  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing
activities (24,774) 1,308,330
MEEBEIHSRE Cash flows from financing activities
BTEBEE I RATAKEE Issue of debt securities and certificates of
deposit 1,095,937 -
Eapyids) Dividend paid - (542,500)
PEEEHERA (GRH) 33#E  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing
activities 1,095,937 (542,500)
e REERESHEE (&) /1 (Decrease)lincrease in cash and cash
equivalents (4,970,372) 3,267,897
W1H1HZHeNEERESEE Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 53,822,409 52,301,071
[ERGEEIEIN S KRR ESTEEY Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
- cash equivalents (1,283,309) (1,746,559)
©?12 A 31 HxEHEFEEHRSEH Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December  35(b) 47,568,728 53,822,409

527 2 239 H Z [ffsFE A4z &M %E The notes on pages 27 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
FZ HHREE Sy o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A B R I
1. EEEH

1. Principal activities

R TAIR AT B
ST (TR AT ) K
3 TR B R T
(T EE AT 4R T Ak
B ) AARAT BRI B R T
R AL S T SRS T

AIRIT EEAE AT R AR 2
BRI - ASRTT Z IR A FIRY
FEEEBE WSk — AT
Mo E] ) P e AT Z A ERE
1 St 41k Ry 7 7 o BR PR 2
151 5% -

El 2016 45 H 30 0 » A%HH
ERE:S NIV = S i
ABRATE (TEERE ) - A%
B AT B R A R TR T (R
) ARSE (P REE ) &
FrAASER SR &
Ut 2016 4 5 H 30 HHE(TA
F > A E AR A % T
AR -

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong (hereinafter as the
“Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the
Bank hereinafter as the “Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking and related financial services.
The principal activities of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of
the Bank”. The address of the Bank’s registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The immediate holding company of the Bank is Cinda Financial Holdings Co. Limited (“Cinda
Financial Holdings”) since 30 May 2016. Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (“‘BOCHK”"), the
Group’s former immediate holding company, disposed all its interests in the Group. The
transaction was completed and the share transfer of the Group effected on 30 May 2016.
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BT (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. FTEEHEE 2. Significant accounting policies

AREHEAGETBREKZE
WEEBERFIIT -

PREFRIEERASN - 2 GBS
We— B E - A FIR Z
A -

2.1 gpiE

REH 2 GAE B AR %
RE BRI SR 2
AR (TS
SR B4 - B e
TEFTH B 2 E M S
HER T AR R )
o M EEE (AFF
By ZHE -

RGO BB AR IEE S
REAmE > M E ATt
B DA EELEtA
R SR N R

(EFEDT AR T E ) DI
RAEFIMRZ B eE - LA
HFIRZ FeE VIR A f
G ETR REHTE X
FEHREARRRI R Z FrE
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EHE G LU HIRHI{E R A
{EATIFR Y BB R 2 B E T
F R AR I ETE YN s
223 } 2.26 -

2 I B T s AR
BB HRR RS T
BEARZ Gl R EHEIR
PR AR Z gt
SRR LA RR T - E s
B HE ~ AR i
SRR S B BRI = 8
BERPEZBRAEE T
HRBTEE 3 -

FREPY 2016 421 H 1 Fi
FRABEVAERE SR A A A 52
T A e AR R AR ST
Hh ok 2016 FEAREEIRA
PR HA AR EST - $H
EESn iyt el
AR BRERLAE

S
M

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale securities, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value, investment properties which are
carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value or revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Repossessed assets and
assets held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell as further explained in Notes 2.23 and 2.26 respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Except for the annual improvements to HKFRSs that are already mandatorily effective for
accounting period beginning on 1 January 2016, there is no other standard or
amendment adopted by the Group in 2016. The impact of the adoption of these annual
improvements is not material to the Group’s financial statements.
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PR (80
2. EEEETEER (80D

2.1 ERERE (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Er2016FE1F1H

(@) Standards and amendments that are already mandatorily effective for

BN E e ERER accounting period beginning on 1 January 2016
Rl A Sy 2B R R 2
AR
REEERE
R 2 Currently
11/ B8] Applicable for relevant
Standards/ NE financial years to the
Amendments Content beginning on Group
EAEETREAE 158 (&1E5T]) eEEE £ 2016 £1H1H &
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016 Yes
EAGTEASE 16 5t TEGTRAE B AENEY 20161 H1H =
4158 (&fE3T)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments) Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016 No
FAETTEALE 16 9t FEGTRENE  BBIE Ky v BT A 20161 H1H &
38 5% (&{&5T)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016 No
Depreciation and Amortisation
EREETERISE 27 558(2011) (&K4B3T) BRI A 201641 H1H v
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016 Yes
EEGETAERISE 28 §7(2011) - T H A ER | ST DREINEIEAEM 201641 H1H =
RIS 10 9 E B B e Al
%12 9% (&1&s])
HKAS 28 (2011), HKFRS 10 and Investment entities: Applying the Consolidation 1 January 2016 No
HKFRS 12 (Amendments) Exception
AR SRS 11 58 (KYEsT) WS EE A s Gt iE 2016 £1 H1H 7
HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 1 January 2016 No
Operations
FB ISR 14 5F EEEBEIRE 201641 H1H =
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 No
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BT (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. FEEEBOR (&)

2.1 ERERE (8D

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@) ER201651H1H#

(@) Standards and amendments that are already mandatorily effective for

FASRRT s TR SR
SRR AEET(E)

R AR 1SR (&
7)) THEENEeE
M - EEGEHERIEL
SRAVEE] SR P
b 2e i R HE =
REAHMBHRERTHE
WEERHTERL - Pl > It
ERTHE R AR
JE FH A B s ek
MmE & EENER S
TR 5 I BR 2 -
PESN - BRIERTRIBHA2E
FEHE PR R
FEAT B B A TR T
B 2L 15 ER
W - ZIRESTEHALEE
HIA BRI
@ .

R et BRI 27 5%
(2011) (&&E3T) "
TL 5 S e P9 O A
%L RABETER T
FRARSEAE B R
PHEHTAE  BES
A~ GAEMEIER
IRz ET IR BRI -

U R RA AR
TERBBRRT > ¥
(SRR i D ey
YRR — B gt
R A B EET -

ZIAEETH AR
BEEIGHERYE -

accounting period beginning on 1 January 2016 (continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment), “Disclosure Initiative”. The amendments to HKAS 1 are
designed to further encourage companies to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose in their financial statements. For example,
the amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of financial
statements and that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the
usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
companies should use professional judgement in determining where and in what
order information is presented in the financial disclosures. This amendment does
not have material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment), “Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements”.
The amendment restores the option to allow an entity to apply the equity method to
account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements. Entities electing to change to the equity method in its
separate financial statements shall have to apply the same accounting for each
category of investments so elected and are required to apply this change
retrospectively. This amendment does not have any material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016

The following standards and amendments have been issued and are mandatory for

accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017:

AR
AR
REIETE A LR Currently

#0887 Applicable for relevant

Standards/ NE financial years to the

Amendments Content beginning on/after  Group

EAEETEAG 7 58 (K1E5]) eEEE £ 20171 H1H &

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017 Yes

FAEETTREALE 12 9% (&4&257) SR E B M IR AP 1547 2 2017 1H1H &

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for 1 January 2017 No
Unrealised Losses

FEMBHS RS 10 st EEEsT REFHEHBENSECEIHNEENEE0E  FE 7

HHIEE 28 9F (&1EET) A

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined No

28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

ER ISR 2 57 (ZE:5D) AR B BEARHT S A S i o At & 201841 H1H =

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based 1 January 2018 No
Payment Transactions

FRY B EREEE 457 (ZE5D) SEEEAVBERSENSE 458 TiReaE ) B 20184E£1H1H =
TR SRS 9 5% TSR TH |

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 1 January 2018 No
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

B BRSO 5t Rl TE 201841 H1H =

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Yes

B B S RS 15 5 TR P EEIIA 201841 H1H =

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 Yes

FE SRS 16 9f (484&5T7) HEEI GRS 15 SFRRE &R 2018 1 H 1 H =
AHTEH

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from 1 January 2018 Yes
Contracts with Customers

B B S B HIE 16 5 HE 201941 H1H =

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 Yes
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MBHRFEHE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. FEEEER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 {EEEE (|) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) EFEMRHE 5o s (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
XSO E 2 i have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)
2016 FRATHRAIZ 2

RURMEET (&)

. W (FHG RIS + Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users

75%) MIERT ETER of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
A AH B & R DL B activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
15 3& & o 47 1 R iR The amendments will result in additional disclosure to be provided in the financial
TREEHED) > Bt statements. The Group is considering the financial impact of the standard and the
HeREMNIERE timing of its application.
SEH S [FEAYEE) - %
CHER X T
FPREE R E
EEN G FEHY &
BhHVRRI M R - AR
IETE BVAf FE I 5%
AE QI 75 52 28 I
FEFINFRS
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2. EEEETEER (80D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 ERERE (8D

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EAEME R
EBRARBEEER

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)

2016 FHRATERGNZZE
RUBAEET (8D

o EEMBSHELERE
95t TEmIA, -
BRI s i e AR RIS
R i S
MAMSER T B s
HHIZ B THERIE
PRI EIE - T
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o BIE A SRS
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TS AERIES 9 SRy
GETAEA] - s EE
WA B T B
& B—HBAREE:
fy TTHEARS ) RE
A > R B R
HREE g
SUTE - WEBTH
HEAERIZS 9 SRAVE
STRFARRAL AT -

() PR

EREE

SR E R
oLl T Horp 2 — a5+
EW - (DLABEERRL
RIFRGETR - (20
I eAEELE AEAM
EHWEEFRETE
(B T F S AR TR
> RIBESN > FrE
N EER SRR AL
frmER) - 5(3)
DA sEE BT AR
R FRGET R - Rl
BN B S
BFHERE - ZRRIEW]
IEHESSIRFREEE © 3% )
BRI E S
T HASER A
DUR % TR GHIH
SERURFEC

+ HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. The issuance of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

completes the International Accounting Standards Board's comprehensive
response to the financial crisis. HKFRS 9, the equivalent standard of IFRS 9
under HKFRS, includes a logical model for classification and measurement, a
single, forward-looking “expected loss” impairment model and a tighter linkage of
risk management to hedge accounting. The changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are
highlighted as follows:

(i) Classification and Measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised cost, (2)
measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (all fair
value changes other than interest accrual, amortisation and impairment will be
recognised in other comprehensive income) or (3) measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss. Classification is to be made on transition, and
subsequently on initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instruments.
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IR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. EEEHBOR (8)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 EBEE (8 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) BARME i A 58 il 1
ERRARBGEERER
2016 EIRFTERGPZAE
RIRABET ()

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)

() 7 kata (4

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

EREE (8

WA AR A —TH
ER L EAETIRE

& HoAZR—THE
BLE - RAbERTE
IR A AE
DU A4 3R 2 1
HEY > DU ERER
EHFERRHEAA
TR AR
MBS - WFFAE
BLEAEBHIE
FERIRF WL & 4B
TR R EE

Mm#% LEAGREE
LB R
B LEELAE

TR R - BT
HHA B TRA
NN IEIN

HE -

Atz T H—AEIA
NREFEREETR
BRIFEFAIFENLT
RRAT R G R st
NfE - FATER S
MR etz TH
RELAA SLEE LR A
Heant & - BWRFrA
ezt ies
AT
T ATREIEY R -
RET R EEBAIS
B B R
Pt s - i
HRAIELERE -
AVRIELI e Y3 Gz )N
T AT R A ©
UK S IR
I BRI U
PIHRERY -

Financial assets (continued)

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a
debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s business model is to hold the
asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows
characteristics represent only unleveraged payments of principal and interest. A
debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it is held in a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the instrument fulfils the contractual cash flows characteristics. All other debt
instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair value with limited
circumstances that cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair value. Equity
instruments that are held for trading will be measured at fair value through profit
or loss. For all other equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at
initial recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses
in other comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to the income statement even upon disposal. Dividend income is
recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2. EEEETEER (80D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 ERERE (8D

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EAEME R
EBRARBEEER

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)

2016 FHRATERGNZZE
RUBAEET (8D
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(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the classification and
measurement requirements of financial liabilities have been basically carried
forward with minimal amendments from HKAS 39.

The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities were changed to
address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the total gain or loss is included
in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is presented in the income
statement. The determination of whether there will be a mismatch will need to be
made at initial recognition of individual liabilities and will not be re-assessed.
Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to the income statement but may be transferred within equity. This
removes the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk
of liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. It also means that gains caused
by the deterioration of an entity's own credit risk on such liabilities will no longer
be recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 ERERE (8D

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EAEME R
EBRARBEEER

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)
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(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value measurement
contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial instruments that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument.

(i) Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model that will require
more timely recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, it requires entities
to account for 12 months expected credit losses from inception when financial
instruments are first recognised and to recognise full lifetime expected credit
losses on a more timely basis when there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition. The impairment for financial instruments that
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments), loan commitments and financial
guarantees will be governed by this standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 ERERE (8D

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EAEME R
EBRARBEEER

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)
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(iii) Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the accounting
treatments with risk management activities and enable entities to better reflect
these activities in their financial statements. It relaxes the requirements for
assessing hedge effectiveness which more risk management strategies may be
eligible for hedge accounting. It also relaxes the rules on using non-derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments and allows greater flexibility on
hedged items. Users of the financial statements will be provided with more
relevant information about risk management and the effect of hedge accounting on
the financial statements.

Early application of HKFRS 9 in its entirety at the same time is permitted. Only the
part related to own credit risk can be elected to be early applied in isolation. The
Group has already formed a group-wide project team to assess the impact of
HKFRS 9, formulate the work plan and implement the standard. Significant works
has been done on analysing our financial instruments, building models and
designing new workflows. Due to the complication of the project, no quantitative
information of the potential effect is concluded yet.
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2. TEEHEEE (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 EBEE (8 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) EHEME N ARRE (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
ERFARBALEER have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)
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* HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies a
single model and specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. The new standard is based on the core principle that
revenue is recognised to reflect the consideration expected to be entitled when
control of promised good or service transfers to customer. It is also applicable to
the recognition and measurement of gains or losses on the sale of some
non-financial assets such as properties or equipment that are not an output of
ordinary activities. HKFRS 15 also includes a set of disclosure requirements
about revenue from customer contracts. The new standard will replace the
separate models for goods, services and construction contracts stipulated in
different standards under the current HKFRS. Early application is permitted. The
Group is considering the financial impact of the standard and the timing of its
application.

* In June 2016, HKICPA has issued amendment to HKFRS 15, “Clarifications to
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The amendments are
intended to address several implementation issues discussed by the Joint
Transition Resource Group for Revenue Recognition. The Group is considering
the financial impact of the standard and the timing of its application.
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2. FEEIBER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 {EEEE (|) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) EEME R sam M (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
SR AW AEFHR have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)
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IR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FESBER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 4EEEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) EEEXRUBHREE (c) Improvements to HKFRSs
]

. Il 5z = = R I S R “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to HKFRSs which the
A BE L TEG HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that result in
o R U T/ == 7 accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as well
BIEE & HAEE as terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRSs.
HEET - B P EFES | The amendments are already effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
AFFR ~ HES BT January 2016. The adoption of these improvements does not have a material impact
=5 R e st on the Group'’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and all
of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary,
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 ¥EHREs 2.3 Segmental reporting
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The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating decision maker of
the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating
segments. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedge or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
securities and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the income
statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available for sale are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end of the reporting
period;
income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve in
equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are designated as hedges
and are effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to measurement under the
hedge accounting requirements.

For derivative instruments designated as hedging instrument and are effectively hedged,
the method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as follows:

(a) Hedges of a particular risk associated with a highly probable future cash flow
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecasted
transaction (cash flow hedge).

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flow
of hedged items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

@)

(b)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity
are reclassified to the income statement in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any accumulated gain or loss existing in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised in the income statement when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately reclassified to the income statement.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Accumulated
gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense
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(continued)

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral part of the effective
yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the related service
is provided, such as administrative fee, asset management fee and custody services fee.
Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related syndication
arrangement has been completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan
package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable
to the other participants.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
securities and available for sale financial assets. The Management determines the
classification of investments at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedges.
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2.8 &RiEE (&) 2.8 Financial assets (continued)

Q) U EEEFFAE (1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.8 Financial assets (continued)
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(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, including placements with and
advances to banks and other financial institutions, investment debt securities without an
active market and loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable.
They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowances for impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity financial investments

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active markets, with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s Management has
both the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold
held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control,
non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group, such as a
significant deterioration in the issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change in statutory or
regulatory requirement; or (ii) other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets,
the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. They are
initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowances for impairment losses.

(4) Available-for-sale financial investments

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either designated as
such or are not classified in any of the other categories. They are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(4) Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously recognised in equity
should be transferred to the income statement. However, interest income which includes
the amortisation of premium and discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other operating income when the
Group'’s right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in other comprehensive
income is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest method. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the financial asset using the
effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, the amount recorded in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities is dealt with in
Note 2.4.

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, deposits, debt securities and certificate of
deposit in issue, and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.
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2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)
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(1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedges. It is measured at fair value and
any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

(2) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue and other liabilities, other
than those classified as trading liabilities are carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if
available) between proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period using the effective interest method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the
holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation
recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the
liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and receivables (except
investment securities without an active market) are recognised when cash is advanced
to the borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
Group either continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not trading liabilities
are recognised when money is received from customers, other liabilities are recognised
when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the balance
sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are
referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments (continued)
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Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to banks, placements from
banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as financial investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as cash and due from banks or
placements with banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual
amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under
reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The
difference between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income or
interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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2.12 Fair value measurement (continued)
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If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals are initially recognised and
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious
metals are included in net trading gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the reliably estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets may be impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about the following probable loss events:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payment;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below investment grade level
for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the group, including:

adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or

national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in
the group.

(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment together with all other financial assets that are not
individually significant or for which impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial assets are grouped
on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period
on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions
in the historical period that do not exist currently.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for impairment
losses. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment losses decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference in the terms are
no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans.

(2) Financial assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the accumulated
losses, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost or amortised cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is
reversed through the income statement. With respect to equity instruments, further fair
value changes are recognised in the reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale
securities through other comprehensive income, impairment losses are not reversed
through the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 B AT EKIEERIEE 2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets
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Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds the
carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated
balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are classified as investment
properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it is a finance lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at cost less
impairment and is included in the carrying amount of investment properties. Once the
item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement up to the amount previously debited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are shown at fair value
based on periodic, at least annual, valuations by external independent valuers less
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the
directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to the open market value
of similar properties, and adjustments are made when there has been a material
change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and
installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the
item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis of its respective
assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the
income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred
from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

+ Properties

Over the life of government land leases
+ Plant and equipment

2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of
each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information are
considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset'’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised in the income statement.

Properties, plant and equipment classified as held for sale is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations".
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18HHE 2.18 Leases
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(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. The total payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any
payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases
Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Government land leases in Hong Kong are
classified as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e.
transaction price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of the land as
if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities. Investment properties acquired
under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term of
the lease using net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

68



%) NCB #1if %% A

PR (80
2. EEEETEER (80D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2.19 Cash and cash equivalents
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For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions,
short-term bills and notes classified as investment securities.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

2.21 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate from
those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
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221 EEEF (8) 2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
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(2) Leave entitlements (continued)

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leaves are
non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except
for unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.

(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plan, is
recognised immediately in the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(4) Defined benefit plan (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation under “interest expenses” and “operating expenses” in the consolidated
income statement by function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

net interest expense or income

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax
expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)
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The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions, depreciation
of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including available-for-sale
securities and premises. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to other comprehensive income,
in which case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement
together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property is determined
based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to
sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession,
and the related loans and advances together with the related impairment allowances
are derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as
“non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

2.26 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through sale, they are available for sale in their present condition
and their sale is highly probable. Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, in accordance with
HKFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations".

2.27 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over the Group;
(i) is a member of the same financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent reporting
group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or parents; (v) is subject to
common control with the Group; (vi) is an entity in which a person identified in (iv)
controls; and (vii) provides key management personnel services to the Group or its
parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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3. FEREstEEi 2 &K 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
et bt B HEgT accounting policies

AEEBEHEHEEIEEE  The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
EERE TN —gHEEIEEM  liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
BEVIEEEE - ZE G and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
R R &CER K2 AR events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to

B T e R 2 changes in essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets
FFEE AR BRI TRIAM AR and liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the key assumptions or other

WERHERE S L o WINAEERY  estimation uncertainties will be presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible
fhist RpleniEss - a2 HIE  that actual results may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.
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3.1 S ERGR R E B 3.1 Impairment allowances on loans and advances
AKEHZVEFEHEFEHE The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis.
HY R AE B T T — 2T In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement,
fti o FOREREGHERKETR the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that
LA el AEEE R there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of
AIF—EFeH A N {E R &K loans and advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that
ZIRMERLERT 0 SR HEr portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an
ENA RIS R E adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group (e.g. payment delinquency
ARE R A 2 R AR FEE TR or default), or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.
EREFHRANEE T The Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with
[& o i EfERE R AR credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
ENERANZ BRI A R portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions
FlliEEAyaI s &R (A0 used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
REGEIHER ) BEHE N regularly.
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#HE 2016 &£ 12 H 31 HWY Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December 2016 are shown in Note 22.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.2

3.3

Impairment of financial investments

The Group reviews its investment portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly
basis. In determining whether any of these investments is impaired, risk characteristics
and performance such as external credit rating and market price will be assessed. The
Group makes estimates on the default rate and loss severity of each investment with
reference to market performance of the portfolios, current payment status of the issuers
or performance of the underlying assets, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the collateralised assets. The methodology and assumptions used for
impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of financial investments as at 31 December 2016 are shown in Note
24,

Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions available in externally
acquired financial analysis or risk management systems widely used by the industry such
as option pricing models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In
addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not
considered in the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates are required
for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling
techniques. Further details will be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December 2016 are shown
in Note 21.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.4 Classificiation of held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity
securities. This classification requires significant management judgement to evaluate the
Group’s intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to
hold these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances defined in HKAS
39, such as selling an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity or due to significant
credit deterioration of such investments, it will be required to reclassify the entire portfolio
of financial assets as available-for-sale securities. The investments would then be
measured at fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31 December 2016 are shown in
Note 24.

3.5 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the estimation of available tax credits and the possibility to
recover such deferred tax assets recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensure various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control
various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups
of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that the Group
has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by the Board of
Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, approving
high-level risk management policies and monitoring their implementation, recommending
senior risk management organisational structure to the Board, including credit approval
authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit approval for the Credit Approval
Committee. The Risk Management Committee would refer any specific transaction to the
Board if it is deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the internal control system.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for credit approval within the authorization
granted by the Board of Directors. The Chief Executive is responsible for organising and
implementing the risk management strategies and objectives established by the Board of
Directors, managing various risks and approving significant risk exposures or transactions
within the authorization granted by the Board of Directors.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent
from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of
risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and
updating various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including establishment of
an organisational structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on

product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and product
development plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic
development unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Units
that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and finance, etc. are
accountable for risk assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units work closely with
relevant risk evaluating units to identify and assess the risks of new products. Risk
evaluating units conduct independent review on the risk assessment results and the
corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched upon completion
of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our customers. All new
treasury products require approval from a specialised committee before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisational structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility
for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management committee authorised by
the Chief Executive, is responsible for the implementation of the credit risk management
strategies as well as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different units of the Group
have their respective credit risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the first
line of defence. The risk management units, which are independent from the business
units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have the primary
responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence through identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as well
as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies and procedures.
They report directly to the Credit and Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive,
Credit Approval Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets up independent risk
monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits management information and reports
to the Bank on a regular basis.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The Board of Directors
delegates credit approval authority to the Credit Approval Committee and the Chief
Executive. Based on management needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the
credit-related subordinates within the limit authorised by the Board of Directors. The Group
sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature, rating, the
level of transaction risk, and the size of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously revising
its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are subject
to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit applications
will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s) before
approval, with exceptions given to designated advances which satisfy certain conditions.
After funding being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly) reviewed by
designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business units. Obligor
ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default)
are assigned to credit applications for non-retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail
internal rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans, personal loans, etc.
Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to
support credit approval.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if applicable) to
support monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk. For non-retail exposures, more
frequent rating review and closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For
retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for credit
monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for obligors being
identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to Standard &
Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master rating scale is in compliance
with the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Regular or ad hoc credit risk management information reports are provided to the
Management, Credit Approval Committee, Executive Committee, Risk Management
Committee and the Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous monitoring of credit risk.

83



%) NCB #1if %% A

PR (80
4. CREBEE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes in counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five categories
with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
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Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets, the obligor ratings or external
credit ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to manage the credit risk
involved and follows the same approval and control processes as applied for advances.
On-going monitoring and stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with counterparties and
also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
equities is made in the failure of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities.
Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 E8RE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured with the
Group as the primary beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was permitted to
sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2015: Nil).
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 R (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) EEREERE (A) Credit exposures
AREE L FEEER The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
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without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For
on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement’) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative
transactions are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In
addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included to form
part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is
passed from one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 86. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed
on pages 100 to 101. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 36. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments, 14.05% (2015: 15.74%)
was covered by collateral as at 31 December 2016.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised
by product type as follows:

SEE R AN T
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
BFEE Advances to customers
EPN Personal
- F48 - Mortgages 26,219,040 23,956,056
- EHFR - Credit cards 441,046 732,148
- EAth - Others 11,549,920 9,827,384
ANH] Corporate
- PEEERK - Commercial loans 141,974,726 115,579,409
- H R - Trade finance 7,596,230 6,141,777
187,780,962 156,236,774
HEEE Trade bills 5,665,154 14,072,143
193,446,116 170,308,917
EFHESIHH & Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
o BEHAEEFE principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
E 8 K AL R E instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and

2o ABIEalE
K JHER T IEE
ZE HH PR
53 P i 3 e
TR > RIFIfEE
pEEe - ZHEIIEE
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EE{ONER SRS
K BER—E
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AEECIRER > TRV
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remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.

A FBEE R
B R —HE S
HIRAEM: > &Y
BAERBAEGC
s B THI AT SRR
KA ER > A E
OB E R -

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred and
that loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the advances
that can be reliably estimated.
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MEEEMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sREEHE (E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) #BEE R HAMRE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
&
WA & B 5 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances has been
B E R REE incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
X% HRESEZE amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows generated by the
X HE T {E B oK 2K IR advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired includes observable data
&7 T IR E W T that comes to the attention of the Group about the loss events.
2 ERE R 8T
B R E R AN
BB aEIlED
HHEHESAE
B REHRE B -
AKEHRBREBUTE The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
BB RAERR impairment loss include:
ELH B EEL
- BERAHBHEEKLR - Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;
HISA B IR 5
- HEREAEE - A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
B g 17 2@ payment;
HMEE A S
IS
- EERAHIRE - For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
BN - AREE Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
RN B EOAER consider;
RZ 5 E M A
BT ERANER
i EHIER
- HEBERER - Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
UN A2 d reorganisation; or

1T ¢ B

- HEMBHEEER - Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
I SlE A= S GRS estimated future cash flows from such advances.
I B IR

HABHEE I -
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MEEEMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRiElREHE (E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) #BEE R HAMRE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
(a) FERMEAREHA (a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired
83K
JERE R A E Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by internal credit
NS EA) grade as follows:
AGFHArT
2016
TEME  XPELT
Er Special Substandard 4E=t
Pass mention or below Total
BT AT AT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
HPEK Advances to customers
{{EPN Personal
- 1418 - Mortgages 25,885,478 40,898 987 25,927,363
- EHF - Credit cards 410,212 19 - 410,231
- Hith - Others 11,492,203 18,074 - 11,510,277
INH] Corporate
- EEFEEK - Commercial loans 139,339,502 1,844,628 2,556 141,186,686
- BERE - Trade finance 7,453,678 61,053 - 7,514,731
184,581,073 1,964,672 3,543 186,549,288
Ot Trade bills 5,665,154 - - 5,665,154
190,246,227 1,964,672 3,543 192,214,442
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (continued)

2015
TWERE  WERELLT
Gk Special Substandard 4=t
Pass mention or below Total
AHTIT AT T HAEETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 23,676,398 23,002 1,265 23,700,665
- Credit cards 653,134 87 - 653,221
- Others 9,740,662 17,864 72 9,758,598
Corporate
- Commercial loans 113,588,886 1,407,580 285 114,996,751
- Trade finance 5,959,307 99,892 - 6,059,199
153,618,387 1,548,425 1,622 155,168,434
Trade bills 14,072,143 - - 14,072,143
167,690,530 1,548,425 1,622 169,240,577

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment loss
where the advances are fully collateralised. While such advances are of
“substandard” or lower grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and

have been included in the above tables.
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HPEK Advances to customers
E@A Personal
- 715 - Mortgages
- EHF - Credit cards
- Hth - Others
ANH] Corporate
- PR - Commercial loans
- BERE - Trade finance

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

2016
AHEH
3fEA
EFREH AHES
6 fEA 6 fEA
AR 3 A Overdue EREH
BT for 14
Overdue six months Overdue BHA
for or less for one B 14
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one &=t
or less months six months year Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
214,590 4,298 1,478 30,167 250,533
16,847 - - - 16,847
32,829 664 559 517 34,569
246,822 1,743 4,998 - 253,563
6,722 1,225 - - 7,947
517,810 7,930 7,035 30,684 563,459
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Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2015
A
3{&H
(EEN R A
6 {& H 6 {& H
A 3 E A Overdue BR
E4VaN for 14F
Overdue six months Overdue A
for or less for one il 1 E
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one 4EE
or less months six months year Total
BT BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
191,087 20 1,635 292 193,034
51,944 - - - 51,944
56,076 3,983 - 2,892 62,951
77,734 - - 17,384 95,118
18,863 6,201 - 1,207 26,271
395,704 10,204 1,635 21,775 429,318
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
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(c) Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Impairment allowances
made in respect of
such advances

Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such

advances to customers

Covered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to

customers

95

2016 2015

e R

A mifE

GEEER Market LEEER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT BETT  BNTT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
41,144 36,522 62,357 77,392
13,968 - 26,983 -
5,074 12,021 5,835 1,147
534,477 236,903 487,540 231,164
73,552 1,920 56,307 1,071
668,215 287,366 639,022 310,774

474,566 434,377

2016 2015

BT HAETT

HK$°000 HK$'000

287,366 310,774

113,048 230,073

555,167 408,949
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4. sREEHE (E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BE K HANERIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(&

(c) WEEX (B) (c) Impaired advances (continued)
TREEFHEEE The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
At E R R collateral in respect of such advances.
safEE -
#2016 4E 12 A As at 31 December 2016, there were no impaired trade bills (2015: Nil).

31 H - ZARE
ZHE 5 FEE

( 2015 =+
fiK) -
FF € 47 B EURVE Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
ZEPFER TN
W
2016 2015
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEE S EEURE > Gross classified or impaired advances to
B ER AR customers 740,215 684,698
Gross classified or impaired advances to
customers as a percentage of gross
advances to customers
= 0.39% 0.44%
S E(E ] Individually assessed impairment
A 2 TR 2 allowances made in respect of such
advances 474,147 433,567
HESEECEE Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
ZEPRERETE classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
AR EEERE loan quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.
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(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as

follows:

2016 2015
L5 S B e = e/t
Bath Horth
% of gross % of gross
| advances to $%H advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 205,766 0.11% 102,053 0.06%
- one year or less
but over six
months 121,647 0.07% 320,702 0.21%
- over one year 339,655 0.18% 203,026 0.13%
Advances overdue
for over three
months 667,068 0.36% 625,781 0.40%
Individually
assessed
impairment
allowances
made in respect
of such
advances 421,834 412,534

97



25 NCB #f 7% 44

MEEEMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sREEHE (E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BE K HANERIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
&
(d) #HA#EE 3{EA (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZER (8
2016 2015
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Ml S B it ) Current market value of collateral held
ENEFER against the covered portion of such
A TE advances to customers 320,355 313,983
AR Covered portion of such advances to
ZEEEK customers 136,249 228,914
AR Uncovered portion of such advances to
EVBFEEE customers 530,819 396,867
i B & R E Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
BRI & charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
TR A ERAE corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
FIETHRE &
EE WP 3 M
M HASRAEF
HT W {EEiZig
Y -
A 2016 4 12 H As at 31 December 2016, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three
31 H & FmiE months (2015: Nil).
WIEHH 2 EHE

(2015 41 fiE ) -
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(e) Rescheduled advances

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2016 2015
% F R (e = et
B4yttt Hirth
% of gross % of gross
&5 advances to £%H advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
ARTT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Rescheduled
advances to
customers net
of amounts
included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” 2,292 0.00% 1,329 0.00%

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or

renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or
of the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
Rescheduled advances, which have been overdue for more than three months

under the revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more

than three mont|

hs”.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of loans and advances.

2016
B e AERHEZ
HArFE RESE BB BB
EEEEEE BEEZED® BURE Individually  Collectively
Gross % covered by Classified assessed assessed
advances to  collateral or or A impairment impairment
customers other security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BT AT BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development 9,395,050 6.41% - - - 21,917
- Property investment 10,775,101 84.72% 29,680 26,154 762 94,939
- Financial concerns 11,037,686 3.70% - - - 23,910
- Wholesale and retail trade 8,029,810 43.50% 75,789 102,065 52,168 53,357
- Manufacturing 8,334,113 20.75% 35,676 33,786 15,582 31,662
- Transport and transport
equipment 5,973,029 11.14% - 360 - 39,465
- Recreational activities 3,437 29.82% - - - 18
- Information technology 2,272,628 1.14% - - - 4,733
- Others 12,915,062 56.98% 10,631 47,460 5,528 71,099
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home Ownership
Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 293,571 99.79% 751 9,536 - 210
- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties 13,105,671 99.93% 6,995 84,233 - 6,049
- Others 8,782,704 71.29% 1,864 28,094 186 5,058
Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 90,917,862 47.37% 161,386 331,688 74,226 352,417
Trade finance 7,596,230 23.78% 75,083 81,499 58,242 42,275
Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 89,266,870 37.67% 503,746 795,102 341,679 457,685
Gross advances to customers 187,780,962 41.81% 740,215 1,208,289 474,147 852,377
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2015
A LEL {ERIEFAL HEFHE
FAAEHR e A E A E
FEERGEE  wEZEO BORE Individually ~ Collectively
Gross % covered by Classified assessed assessed
advances to collateral or or HIHA impairment impairment
customers _other security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BT BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development 5,448,761 15.36% - - - 14,435
- Property investment 10,849,282 92.84% 29,794 24,466 - 110,979
- Financial concerns 4,497,199 9.53% - - - 9,638
- Stockbrokers 480 100.00% - - - 4
- Wholesale and retail trade 9,251,574 30.74% 87,956 103,927 65,156 69,887
- Manufacturing 8,523,132 23.30% 30,691 34,384 19,210 36,657
- Transport and transport
equipment 4,316,243 7.66% - 360 - 13,381
- Recreational activities 141,637 0.76% - - - 294
- Information technology 741,295 2.40% 2,634 4,839 1,309 1,803
- Others 14,315,090 42.23% 19,729 25,474 16,498 71,945
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home Ownership
Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 364,199 99.88% 1,501 8,736 - 241
- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties 12,304,337 99.86% 648 53,917 - 5,401
- Others 7,338,950 56.81% 2,461 27,195 1,410 4,712
Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 78,092,179 50.43% 175,414 283,298 103,583 339,377
Trade finance 6,141,777 33.44% 68,558 78,781 49,162 46,830
Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 72,002,818 39.30% 440,726 667,966 280,822 565,129
Gross advances to customers 156,236,774 44.63% 684,698 1,030,045 433,567 951,336
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement,
and classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

2016 2015
WHRE MSHFTE
SR FESK e DERI=R= G4
Classified or B A Classified or
- New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development 3,334 2,497 - -
- Property investment 2,629 1,351 1,201 2,279
- Financial concerns - - 1,116 -
- Wholesale and retail trade 8,723 8,891 58,030 8,634
- Manufacturing 1,885 409 8,405 12,015
- Transport and transport equipment 1,307 236 - -
- Recreational activities - - 55 -
- Information technology 246 1,386 415 -
- Others 175 833 36,413 25,400
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of flats in
Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme - - - -
- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties - - 223 -
- Others 12,829 13,658 14,413 16,002
Total loans for use in Hong Kong 31,128 29,261 120,271 64,330
Trade finance 38,946 8,132 85,798 91,386
Loans for use outside Hong Kong 620,538 464,549 935,173 992,314
Gross advances to customers 690,612 501,942 1,141,242 1,148,030
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MEEEMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sREEHE (E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4B R HANEETR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
f) EEESHRERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
&
(i) 7 Hb B & 4k 47 (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
BZEPEK
“a
THIRN % ~ The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
B2 & locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
15 53 M = AR 1 an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different
L5 EF 2B from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
TEsth - G TR R
JEBREEAS N2 -
HEPERZ
¥ O A P AE 3
B 22 5 P AE M
ATE] - R e
M EERA
ZPTED -
B ERRAEE Gross advances to customers
2016 2015
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
i Hong Kong 99,595,734 88,083,058
o [5] A HE, Mainland of China 78,467,343 61,013,223
HAl Others 9,717,885 7,140,493
187,780,962 156,236,774
REFERE Collectively assessed impairment
BfetHE T allowances in respect of the gross
G Z B E & advances to customers
&
w5 Hong Kong 399,995 426,019
R Y3 Mainland of China 414,707 452,571
oAt Others 37,675 72,746
852,377 951,336
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MEEEMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRiElREHE (E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 R (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BE K HANERIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
&
) ERERERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
&
(i) FZhIE EI 5y (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
BzEFPER

HaEd ()

HHIEK Overdue advances
2016 2015
BT HEETTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
A Hong Kong 303,149 276,118
o [5] A Mainland of China 895,663 739,435
Ffih Others 9,477 14,492
1,208,289 1,030,045
REHERME Individually assessed impairment
EpR allowances in respect of the overdue
T advances
EFi Hong Kong 36,869 51,497
R Y HE Mainland of China 412,222 368,279
HoAthr Others 301 436
449,392 420,212
A ESRE Collectively assessed impairment
HET G allowances in respect of the overdue
BUEXER advances
EHHE Hong Kong 3,105 3,741
o [5]  HE Mainland of China 12,749 3,183
Al Others 134 56
15,988 6,980

104



%) NCB #:f 7% 44

PR (80
4. sRERREE (8

4.1 FEERE (8

(B) AERURHANAREA
@&
() EFEREFE
@&

(i) 2 3t B W 3 o)
BzHPEX

HaEd ()

R E 73 T B
EER

Fopess
e st
FiAth

LA E IR
AR
BRI A 2
BB A

o
P
HAttr

B E 2 K
BE SR
HEMEZ
BAERE

HHE
o st

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

Classified or impaired advances

2016 2015
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 121,649 131,490
Mainland of China 617,750 552,753
Others 816 455
740,215 684,698
Individually assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the
classified or impaired advances
Hong Kong 37,167 59,480
Mainland of China 436,679 373,651
Others 301 436
474,147 433,567
Collectively assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the
classified or impaired advances
Hong Kong 705 1,043
Mainland of China 731 1,187
1,436 2,230
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R (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRpiEfEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 R (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(C) WEI&EE (C) Repossessed assets
RN REEEE During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
EHE AT S AT (Y [ security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are
B 7E FE T LIS 7 summarised as follows:

12 H 31 HfFAEE
FE - HIEE R AI{E

feEian s
2016 2015
BT T ATT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEZUES Commercial properties 592 4,251
TV Industrial properties - 80,250
(ERE=tY/ES Residential properties 1,031 13,968
1,623 98,469
AREEEA 2016 4 12 The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
H 31 HEFARYE December 2016 amounted to HK$109,837,000 (2015: HK$122,509,000). The
BEZGE BB repossessed assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired
109,837,000 It access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the
(2015 4 : #w proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
122,509,000 T )- 72
B A 5 [ o
AR B 15 R A%
HIRERIIZE (A
EREFHNEEE
FEAE Y HR A E E TT
HEUT) A
Y {8 5 AT 2 B ek
B3 JRRES: -
BB E AR When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
BEJIZ R BN » A consider the following alternatives:
EHREBERT
FI77 AR
- PR EERR - adjusting the selling prices
- EEHEIE E—OF - selling the loans together with the assets
- ZHHMESEA - arranging loan restructuring

106



25 NCB #1if A% 4 A

PR (80
4. CREBEE (8)

4.1 FEERE (8

(D) ST R H A SR
TGS B

TRAERT R
e e S e
A 2 S50 AR
12 i 31 VAR
Z VRS -

FRAT
SRTT R ELAth <A

o ERTT
SRAT R LA AR

7 2016 4 12 A 31
B A IR EZ
SR e Al <5 il 1R 1
GhER B APEk (2015 4F -

)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
rating agency designation.

2016
A3 BAF
Aaa % A3 Lower AR QG
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Central banks 18,761,393 - - 18,761,393
Banks and other
financial
institutions 23,417,390 11,734,600 12,532,312 47,684,302
42,178,783 11,734,600 12,532,312 66,445,695
2015
A3 DI
Aaa &£ A3 Lower FREETAR 4=
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
I T BT BT BT
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Central banks 16,038,647 - - 16,038,647
Banks and other
financial
institutions 23,767,541 17,650,869 3,250,385 44,668,795
39,806,188 17,650,869 3,250,385 60,707,442

As at 31 December 2016, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions (2015: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt securities and
certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

17 NHTREER s -
2016
A3 T
Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 Lower AR gt
Aaa Aalto Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ok R Available-for-sale
securities 13,616,860 23,809,336 15,150,997 7,729,268 9,791,483 70,097,944
FAEZFIHHES Held-to-maturity
securities 207,630 1,856,312 - - - 2,063,942
B R TEGER Loans and receivables - 842,909 397,410 - 3,519,496 4,759,815
NffEEEE AJE25  Financial assets at fair
JEREE value through profit
or loss 3,233,647 205,116 241,638 - - 3,680,401
17,058,137 26,713,673 15,790,045 7,729,268 13,310,979 80,602,102
2015
A3 IIF
Aal & Aa3 Al £ A3 Lower HESTAR qEzt
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BIETIT BIETIT AT IT AT IT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o it EE A Available-for-sale
securities 3,814,391 27,409,836 16,575,057 1,781,530 2,298,167 51,878,981
FEZFHES Held-to-maturity
securities 208,732 2,257,798 - - - 2,466,530
B EUER Loans and receivables - - 585,792 - - 585,792
AfEg(LE AJE235  Financial assets at fair
T ERhEE value through profit
or loss - 6,714,292 249,280 - - 6,963,572
4,023,123 36,381,926 17,410,129 1,781,530 2,298,167 61,894,875
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and certificates of deposit

neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by issue rating. In the absence of

such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

SR o3 M - TSRS 1T
PRAREIIES T Al
BT AR R -
2016
A3 DT
Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 Lower PR sa=t
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
al It RS A Available-for-sale
securities 13,616,860 23,809,336 15,150,997 7,729,268 9,791,483 70,097,944
FEEFHAH S Held-to-maturity
securities 207,630 1,856,312 - - - 2,063,942
B R UK Loans and receivables - 842,909 397,410 - - 1,240,319
NfEE s AJE2:  Financial assets at fair
ZERhERE value through profit
or loss 3,233,647 205,116 241,638 - - 3,680,401
17,058,137 26,713,673 15,790,045 7,729,268 9,791,483 77,082,606
2015
A3 DR
Aal & Aa3 Al £ A3 Lower HESTAR qEzt
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT BT BT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
kR Available-for-sale
securities 3,814,391 27,409,836 16,575,057 1,781,530 2,298,167 51,878,981
FHEZFHHES Held-to-maturity
securities 208,732 2,257,798 - - - 2,466,530
B EUER Loans and receivables - - 585,792 - - 585,792
AffEg(LE AJE25  Financial assets at fair
ZREE value through profit
or loss - 6,714,292 249,280 - - 6,963,572
4,023,123 36,381,926 17,410,129 1,781,530 2,298,167 61,894,875
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MEEEMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sREEHE (E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) EHBENERE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
&
TR EREEGE5H The following tables present an analysis of impaired debt securities by issue rating. In
ST ERAR AT o A S the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

TRV T -
T AT

L o
2016
BT e :
Carrying values B E RS
Of which
A3 DI'F accumulated
Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 Lower JEETAR &&=+ impairment
Aaa Aalto Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
BT BB B¥ETIT  BETT BB AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER ENGK Loans and
receivables - - - - 3,519,496 3,519,496 15,424
Hrp o BHEFECE#EMH  Of which
accumulated
impairment
allowances - - - - 15,424 15,424
2016 4 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2016, there were no impaired certificates of deposit and no overdue
H 8 HEBE FiEE debt securities and certificates of deposit.
K2R i 2 B
75 ARG
7 2015 & 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2015, there were no impaired or overdue debt securities or
H 38 REERE > certificates of deposit

SRR AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HEER 4.2 Market risk

55 L 2 5 N < i o 35
{EE (SR - ISR - RESE(H
T~ BEELERS ) B
BRI ~ IR - B SENIRE
n e (E R B (LI T AE
SRR ER AR - AL
9] R E 2 ) T 5 L f
% R SR Y P
fhy

MR e - BIRE
A5 B Y L e 4 T
SETS SRR - (REESTEN
JeE g B A A AR ) B
FE - AREHEREET
FTREEE AR TS - (e
BB RIS St -

A B e P 2
EaRAVE R Hi b &
LB TR E
HEEE mEEHAEM
iR A AL - & FH
o BEH - EERE
frEammEEEHA
BIEfT B E R BT
B 22 4 B v 5 R L
DU & B B SR A R AT
L B CREE AR A{E 1Y
T35 g $9 22 i 1 7T 952
KPP - b EE 0
A B & FREC
% 7E Y e e B AE A AT R
P Sl E R E R R R
EEEHA B ERA
T R R e PR T - R RIS [
B B - B (T
) BA BTN R R 2
Bz B F R T R R
MREFBTIE I A E R A
IRTHEACE B B -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury
business, by effective management of potential market risk in the Group’s business,
according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the
basis of a well-established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and Risk Management Committee, Senior Management and
functional units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market
risk. The risk management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and
compliance of management policies and limits of the Group, to ensure that the aggregate
and individual market risks are within acceptable levels. Independent units are assigned to
monitor the risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with profit and loss
reports submitted to Senior Management on a regular basis, while limit excess will be
reported to Senior Management at once when it occurs. NCB (China) sets up independent
risk monitoring teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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MEEEMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sREEHE (E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HiEEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

£ E 3 E T S T s S The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
TR NR%E > FIAERA -~ 51 control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but not limited to VAR
B BERIF R EI T 5 (Value-at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis
Fg o TR PSR RZE Point Value). To meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are
EFEERPE EREE ~ 1k classified into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset
TEEH ~ WA ~ FRSTHIE and Liability Management Committee or Senior Management respectively. Treasury
DLR SR 5 (EL B (E business units are required to conduct their business within approved market risk
H) % - TGS indicators and limits.

IREEREHFEE D
POfEE sk > oy nl R E
HEESE GEAREH
ZEENEEERASR
s - B FRALRERZ
H T 55 L i+ A AL PR A
HE ARERESES

(A) ElgE (A) VAR

AEEE R R EE The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk
FE— RS 5 b - Management Committee and Senior Management on a periodic basis. The Group
EHEEESHEES adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical simulation approach
S EEE A 28 and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the
& o REERHEY— Bank over one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR
R (B S e limit of the Group and the Bank.

R SEHEE - DA

BEEE RN HE

BRI 5HH9%

EEKET R

AN SRR

APRITHIERE - A

A E AR ERIASRTT

e (LR -
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4.2 HiEEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) B&E (8 (A) VAR (continued)
TR A EE—
R% T 35 B R A HY Group.
JEB " -

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure® of the

e 24 28

&4y |R12H31H RIERE EERE  CPERE

At Minimum for Maximum for Average for

Year |31 December the year the year the year

AT T AT T BT BT

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SR > B E VAR for all market risk 2016 2,008 466 2,670 1,615
2015 939 559 1,387 861

PR\ R (B VAR for foreign exchange risk 2016 1,998 354 2,675 1,535
2015 714 463 1,398 820

PAIES VAR for interest rate risk 2016 215 145 723 348
2015 225 53 301 176

P A 2 VAR for commodity risk > 2016 - - 128 44
2015 - - - -

o Note:

1AL FE A/ DR S R 1 i 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
HYEFRE - N L

2. WS R M O 2. Position in commodity since Nov-2016.
2016 £ 11 H
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mBERE (8
(A EEE (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

e 28 I e {2 R T
17 35 JE\ g Y — JH B
SHER - HHAEHE

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in the context of
its limitations. For example:

PR - il -

- RS S — the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
I 5 A 2k B A encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
REEE R PATA

REHBRAVEIL >
HJZ — S 1F
s

- —RFEFAEIETE — the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
J7 A PR BE hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of
B a IfE—H severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
WEBEE - 15 hedge all positions fully;

T R 3 AR 2 RE 52
ESl AV
b - CHAETIER
BRI > FIAE
REE—RFEAH
CHIaESSEEE S
FE R 5

RIEES - B
99% E {5 /K F
B > BIREHELT
I {5 K S BLAM
E—a RO
Dk

— the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses
that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

- E bR E S DUE — VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
I3 [ 45 o 0% Y oE and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

st A
B A R — B
5% 5 B 7 9 R

b -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mBERE (8
(A ERE (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

REE T TR
b (& 15 £2 HY )5 B
o RE - HiE TR
70 A R R PR A
DL it F 2 e
ER R ER T
JeB: - T R R EE
B FE R [F
b ER 28 A0 Y Bt W
2 P 1 AV SR M
> DU SR
R E ST > A
1997 5 1 < il o 7%
LA 5 2008 < il /3
3

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
to assess and manage the market risk not covered by VAR. The market risk stress
testing includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors with various degrees of
severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events including the 1997 Asian
Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

(B) JMNEREE (B) Currency risk
AKEBENEENRE The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly
fEEFERTTT T the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of
RARBEFEE the Group is managed at an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit)
We o BuTife (R s NI JE far are used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the

HRYE ORFFAE AT 132
KV AR
W PR (PIanssiE &
JE B FRER ) 17 Rl
ZETE - I Ak
B 22 T35 Dk ] —
W EERAR
SHAC - WA E ST
MEEEY (BILOSNE
) BN EE
BT A HYSP
ez

gap between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts
(e.g. FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mBERE (8
(B) SMNERER (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(B) Currency risk (continued)

TRINMAEHRNA
HEXR S - JEAER

2 R G A BT

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

A T AN
b W HEARREE
BINEB R BE
IEEEOE S ETN
[[E
2016
BT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAtr s SRR
E=yIn Other Total
us NG foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 89,820,749 116,285,504 8,951,419 215,057,672
HEEE Spot liabilities (73,408,148) (114,083,563) (6,962,887) (194,454,598)
EHAE A Forward purchases 24,235,532 18,169,822 2,851,778 45,257,132
EHIE Forward sales (38,954,759) (20,994,854) (4,819,645) (64,769,258)
£/ () #8344  Net long/(short) position 1,693,374 (623,091) 20,665 1,090,948
SEREME BRI FER Net structural position 121,810 8,554,006 - 8,675,816
2015
BT ITEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAhopis HNEEHEER
FETT Other Total
us NGRS foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 62,789,261 105,966,748 14,036,470 182,792,479
REEE Spot liabilities (56,280,126) (96,346,613) (10,103,847) (162,730,586)
IS A Forward purchases 23,762,419 7,770,358 2,767,918 34,300,695
IS Forward sales (28,585,949) (17,344,597) (6,688,061) (52,618,607)
EREEE Net long position 1,685,605 45,896 12,480 1,743,981
sEREM AR TR Net structural position 293,056 8,431,220 - 8,724,276
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MBEHENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEER (8
(C) FIREkR

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk
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Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of
interest rate risk from structural positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets and liabilities
that may affect net interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same
repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an adverse impact
on net interest income or economic value; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet
items that can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.
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4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management.

AR E S DAV IS The Asset and Liability Management Committee exercises its oversight of interest rate
RI%‘EE&I% ff&'f)}‘;}ﬂ risk in accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy”
=il f=Eiid approved by Risk Management Committee. Financial Management Division is
Hy (#RT EF*[JKR responsible for interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of the Treasury
I EHER) > 3 Division, Financial Management Division assists the Asset and Liability Management
AEEHZAES E Committee to perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but
BT EHERT] are not limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies,
REREE - setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of
BEHEFE=R the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of interest rate risk management
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reports to the Management and Risk Management Committee.

S I R B 4
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sRiEfERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor
and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but are not limited to,
repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a basis point (“PVBP”), net
interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value sensitivity ratio (‘EV”). The
indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which are approved by the Risk
Management Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee and Deputy
General Manager of Middle-office respectively. Risk-taking business units are required
to conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits. Before
launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current risk monitoring
mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment
process will be submitted to Risk Management Committee for approval.
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sRiEERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEERE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mpx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

3K B B EE R NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
(NI 0 45 775 {5 (R OR7 income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators. The
B 1L 2R (EV) K7 Bt F1] former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income as a
RSB EEF | percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses the
B AR E AR ELRE impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of cash
2 EAEEE flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest
R 2 i e Y R B rate) as a percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the Risk Management
E st g = Committee on these two indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book
IS =) EEipe interest rate risk.
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AEERKABRE S The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
T A1 BRIt 5 rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses
o FHEAR R and stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income arising from
SRITRE FTRE K Z 1Y the optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sRiEERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 EER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI==mbx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

B [E] T S The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
TT ETT AR interest rate risk. As at 31 December 20186, if HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi market
KE\ o B2 2016 interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward shift of the yield curve in relevant
FI12H31H H currency with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net interest income over
BT ETT AR a twelve-month period and on reserves for the Group would have been as follows:

H WS g 4 AR TT

% 100 {EE:ES -

FoAh R A 5

T BRI 12
{8 H 893 FE U A

B S G R 0 RURE
wr e
12 H 31 H¥PRAK 12 @A
AR BRI
Impact on net interest income 712 B 31 B HErys e
over the next twelve months Impact on reserves
at 31 December at 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
AT BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT HK Dollar 344,852 298,266 (145,477) (79,004)
E5T US Dollar (65,468) (74,762) (239,489) (114,872)
AR Renminbi (109,140) (39,332) (283,703) (301,279)
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The overall positive impact on net interest income of the above currencies has
decreased when compared with 2015 and is mainly because of the widened short term
negative gaps in Renminbi. Reserves would have been reduced because of the
expected reduction in valuation of available-for-sale securities due to a parallel shift up
of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The reduction of reserves is increased compared
with 2015 because the sizes of HK Dollar and US Dollar available-for-sale securities in
capital market are increased.

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several assumptions,
including but not limited to the change in the correlation between interest rates of
relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that
would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge
accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of
products in which actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or
products without contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

N T AR EH The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk
W12 A 31 H>& as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
ERERNIFIR amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.
JEU B AR - RN LAR
H{EYIREEREA
& WEEHERTE
FRHIAEEHAH (2
RERE) D -
2016
—Z =z 0=
—EARN =®E  +ZEB —EHF  EEME Non-
Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- &=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BSTT BBt BSTr EB%TT A%t BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
=73 Assets
R4 R AERSRIT R4 Cash and balances with banks
BRIEREGS R and other financial institutions 50,470,449 - - - - 1,857,134 52,327,583
ESRTT R Rk — 2 Placements with banks and
+E AR EIE e other financial institutions
ke maturing between one and
twelve months - 4,552,714 10,126,985 - - - 14,679,699
AREB(EET A 2 SR Financial assets at fair value
HiE through profit or loss 210,443 2,217,212 1,252,746 - - - 3,680,401
T4 SR THE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 896,476 896,476
B HAIETE Advances and other accounts 126,655,688 26,491,174 34,357,922 4,455,523 157,070 2,215 192,119,592
SRS Financial investments
- AR - Available-for-sale 11,387,979 15,290,801 20,667,974 22,009,605 741,585 13,381 70,111,325
- FEEEEA - Held-to-maturity - 475559 426,416 1,161,967 - - 2,063,942
- BRI - Loans and receivables 115,373 - 1,461,965 3,182,477 - - 4,759,815
B Investment properties - - - - - 383,830 383,830
Vs ~ S5h Rl Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 6,929,407 6,929,407
HftrErE (BFEREREE Other assets (including deferred
) tax assets) - - - - - 980,639 980,639
KR Total assets 188,839,932 49,027,460 68,294,008 30,809,572 898,655 11,063,082 348,932,709
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2016

— == TR

—fEAR =R +=ER —E2HF #AEMLE Non-
Up to 1to 3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- st
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AT EETT EETrT BT BT ENTT EETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
12,774,352 5,311,595 11,947,531 - 416,732 30,450,210
1,880,498 816,180 526,778 - 3,223,456
- - - - 934,244 934,244
143,254,320 48,321,171 46,879,361 1,631,983 17,440,695 257,527,530
- - 541,378 554,559 1,095,937
8,046,649 804,515 1,839,269 22,513 5,615 6,297,803 17,016,364
165,955,819 55,253,461 61,734,317 2,209,055 5,615 25,089,474 310,247,741
22,884,113  (6,226,001) 6,559,691 28,600,517 893,040 (14,026,392) 38,684,968
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2015
= =% FatE
—{EARN =f&H +={EH —ZE0fF AFMUE Non-
Up to 1to 3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- 4=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BT BT AT BT BT B¥TIT ABETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions 50,565,792 - - - - 3,679,013 54,244,805
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months - 3,157,041 3,899,744 - - - 7,056,785
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,762,994 2,479,360 2,471,938 249,280 - - 6,963,572
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 696,266 696,266
Advances and other accounts 107,765,185 28,446,478 27,748,294 4,792,519 171,538 - 168,924,014
Financial investments
- Available-for-sale 8,601,020 10,455,974 14,442,944 18,494,300 356,810 4,613 52,355,661
- Held-to-maturity - - 298,771 2,167,759 - - 2,466,530
- Loans and receivables 182,257 48,142 355,393 - - - 585,792
Investment properties - - - - - 414,736 414,736
Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 7,008,020 7,008,020
Other assets (including current
and deferred tax assets) 31 - - - - 4,347,852 4,347,883
Assets held for sale - - - - - 132,729 132,729
Total assets 168,877,279 44,586,995 49,217,084 25,703,858 528,348 16,283,229 305,196,793
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2015
—F =% FatE
—{EHRN =EA @A —ZEAF HFEME Non-
Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- 4
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BT BETT AT BETT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions 19,054,571 2,501,295 6,689,467 - - 2,715,841 30,961,174
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,084,486 1,907,861 1,583,009 - - - 4,575,356
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 302,944 302,944
Deposits from customers 135,919,721 34,269,925 30,101,149 5,512,157 - 12,459,031 218,261,983
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 1,666,422 2,713,701 6,158,633 454,913 19,427 2,961,586 13,974,682
Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale - - - - - 21,884 21,884
Total liabilities 157,725,200 41,392,782 44,532,258 5,967,070 19,427 18,461,286 268,098,023
Interest sensitivity gap 11,152,079 3,194,213 4,684,826 19,736,788 508,921 (2,178,057) 37,098,770
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MEERIEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sRiEERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mEEeERE 4.3 Liquidity risk
mENE bR iER T Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or pay due
R EIR L TR E DL obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity
JESIE E I INEEf T8 risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity
MRS > M AlREE R needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
WA Az yiask: - A& cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the
EEE G REE lender of last resort.
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MEERIEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sRiEERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mgrEEEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of
on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite
to achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in
place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to different term maturities
and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its
asset structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain
sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate funds in support of normal business
needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in
case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use
of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent triggering
liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when problem occurred in one
concentrated funding source. The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk
management guideline to manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the
Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan
commitments and derivatives. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management
strategy to cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks,
etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FrErESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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Risk Management Committee (RMC) is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk
management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RMC, the Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) exercises its
oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in accordance
with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Financial Management Division is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to
assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR”), loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative
Cash Outflow (“MCO”) and liquidity buffer asset portfolio. The Group applies cash flow
analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions and also
performs a liquidity stress test (including institution specific, general market crisis and
combined crisis) at least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand
various severe liquidity crises. Also, the Assets and Liabilities Management System is
developed to provide data and the preparation for regular management reports to facilitate
liquidity risk management duties.
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4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FrErESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2011, the Group has
implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In
cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to
on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes.
The Group establishes MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 day maximum
cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to
assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to
achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December 2016, before taking the
cash inflow through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the
Bank’s 30 day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to HK$457,877,000
(2015: HK$9,723,236,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit requirements.

130



%) NCB #1if %% A

MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FrErESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

TETR B < a8 bR 1A
Ao AEERLTH
Bfatk - Mgl s
PiEER > GOfEk
EREGE SR
Biatk > WHRH—EE
BB DA
SEE FRIERETE
BEMEER NI SEE
77 o BEITHERAI R
BEEEFK ~ LT
FEIEERZ TRRH
ORI K B 5 A
KIS R A 2 FEEUR
EHCaIAL B RoREh
EREE > [FESRH A
EHEHIPTHIESE - B
2016 E 12 H 31 H > &
EEEM L=
RTMEHFERS
o BRAEEARE
JERTEE B R T HIREE
FE o pEAN - AREEN
EHPUREOR A HE
FEREhE S mE > &
BENSEREZRME
EHEBSRHERE
B~ HpIuReT - N
L% 8 38 IR SR T 31T
SHECR o R E
B 0% =i 20% - eIk
B ERTEIELR
HAMNES e A
A-ECDLE o DIFEGRERE
JIER FTHEETK -
#2016 /£ 12 H 31
KIRIT R ENE S R 1H
CHrfims ) kB
28,653,565,000 JC
(2015 4 : & ¥
29,189,795,000 7T )- &
SETEIBHAE T TRIRIB AR
TR R T F A
&5 R s BIUED 5 2= 095
o AEEHl T AR TE
SHE -~ R AR S AHRE
EPIIEE -

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific
and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe
liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown
rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and
rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable
securities. As at 31 December 2016, the Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow
under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral
development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued or
guaranteed by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or
above to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2016,
the Bank’s liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$28,653,565,000 (2015:
HK$29,189,795,000). A contingency plan is being established which details the conditions
to trigger the plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action
plans and relevant procedures and responsibility of various departments.
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MRS () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FrErESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1
January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised institution by the
HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis. During the year of 2016, the
Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than 70%.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request from the Group
additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to Risk Management Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies. On the
basis of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal banking subsidiary develops its own
liquidity management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own
liquidity risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management processes
independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a regular basis.
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WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERRERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FrErESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) mEMEESER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio
2016 FREHEHESE
2016 quarter ended
12H31H 9H30H 6H30H 3F31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
BN ELLRAT Average value of
HE liquidity
coverage ratio 141.78% 165.40% 145.26% 130.84%
2015 FFEELEHEE
2015 quarter ended
12H31H 9H30H 6 H30H 3H31Hd
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
IR E LAY Average value of
HE liquidity
coverage ratio 120.02% 114.10% 163.68% 123.70%
MENVEE E LR The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
S EEENZE of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
& By B8 T AE H 4% calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.
G REIMEEE
Eb AR A R 25 8
25 TR i B AR 5
Za&ERHmEYINH
HIET R 7 A RIE R
S
eI E SR E The liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises the
DISFE RS H - A6 positions of the Bank and the subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with
g ERATE ORE) the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
) AN AR T
Fe 48 Ja) e E 2 It
& A EIGHR -
AR EMEEEL The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
RIF BN RER section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.
AR ITHEE

www.nch.com.hk tf
TEIEDEE —EE

-
B

=
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to

the contractual maturity date.

FEEEIFIHEA H A9
BRIAMR 35
2016
—F =7
B —MEHAA =@ +=ER —ZEHEF HEMULE THEE
On Up to 1to 3 3to 12 1to5 Over HE#j =t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
bl bl bl bl bl bl B B
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
=73 Assets
IR & RAFHUR T R oAt 4@ Cash and balances with banks and
TRIERISSER other financial institutions 22,715,971 29,611,612 - 52,327,583
TESRIT R EA SRS —2= 1+ Placements with banks and other
{8 H N EIHA.Z AR financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - - 4,552,714 10,126,985 14,679,699
AREB(EE AIER 2 £Rl&E  Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- 5k — Held for trading
- fE5ES - Debt securities 210,443 2,217,212 1,011,108 3,438,763
- FUE BN fRE S LA — Designated at fair value
fizEn through profit or loss
- fE5ES - Debt securities - - 241,638 241,638
TTESMTE Derivative financial instruments 336,361 62,105 150,734 347,276 896,476
BRR H AR Advances and other accounts
- BEEH — Advances to customers 6,757,582 6,710,603 10,567,311 36,092,176 85,944,627 39,903,860 478,279 186,454,438
- H5EE — Trade bills 1,780 1,427,406 1,967,532 2,268,436 5,665,154
SREE Financial investments
- HftHE - Available-for-sale
- fE5ES - Debt securities 3,884,572 10,733,506 9,178,135 22,886,731 739,120 47,422,064
- 7R — Certificates of deposit 4,504,881 11,055 7,612,342 2,778,873 14,907,151
— Hfth — Others 1,673,061 1,679,707 4,415,961 - 7,768,729
- FFEEFIHA — Held-to-maturity
- [EBESR — Debt securities - - 348,456 553,519 1,161,967 2,063,942
— RN - Loans and receivables
- HEBES - Debt securities - - 1,240,319 - 1,240,319
- HAth - Others 115,373 221,646 3,182,477 3,519,496
- Belnse sz - Equity securities 13,381 13,381
R Investment properties - - - 383,830 383,830
LUE R e Properties, plant and equipment - - - 6,929,407 6,929,407
HAE R (BEREU R R Other assets (including current
HEE) and deferred tax assets) 357,748 328,403 157,587 85,150 (41,271) 93,022 980,639
BERH Total assets 30,169,442 48,528,459 32,385,814 73,394,691 115,913,404 40,642,980 7,897,919 348,932,709

134



25 NCB #1if A% 4 A

WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREBEE (8)

43 FErELRE (8
(B) BHAH 7 (&)

A%

SRIT R HLA R A kR
i

AREE b ARG SRA S

(TR TA
HFEK
CRITEFERRENE

HANRIF AR (REEARE
FARFERRIAALR)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

2016
—& ==
B —@EAR =@EE +-EA —FHEF HEEME W FHEE
On Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over HH#j et
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
bl AN bl AN bl il b il
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions 1,331,420 10,457,704 4,835,461 11,125,398 2,700,227 - 30,450,210
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,880,498 816,180 526,778 - 3,223,456
Derivative financial instruments 110,954 25,609 138,511 535,864 123,306 934,244
Deposits from customers 102,970,686 55,417,442 50,119,358 47,365,113 1,654,931 - 257,527,530
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 541,378 554,559 1,095,937
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 8,633,899 1,373,150 1,181,545 4,878,344 948,759 667 - 17,016,364
Total liabilities 113,046,959 69,154,403 57,091,055 64,972,875 5,981,782 667 - 310,247,741
Net liquidity gap (82,877,517) (20,625,944) (24,705,241) 8,421,816 109,931,622 40,642,313 7,897,919 38,684,968
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Assets

Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other

financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Held for trading
- Debt securities
— Designated at fair value
through profit or loss
- Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
— Advances to customers
— Trade bills
Financial investments
— Available-for-sale
— Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Others
— Held-to-maturity
— Debt securities
- Loans and receivables
— Debt securities
— Equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)
Assets held for sale

Total assets

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2015
—F =
Bl —EAA =R +=EA —=ZAF AFME FHEE
On Up to 1to3 3t012 1to5 Over HHA Ha=t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
13,738,576 31,379,966 - - 9,126,263 54,244,805
- 3,157,041 3,899,744 - 7,056,785
1,762,994 2,479,360 2,471,938 - 6,714,292
- - 2,168 247,112 - 249,280
320,134 96,765 21,483 255,610 2,274 - 696,266
5,500,045 7,436,513 14,184,098 36,000,440 61,815,074 29,138,201 777,500 154,851,871
7 3372536 4,090,506 6,609,094 - - 14,072,143
7,295,867 6,428,028 8,657,828 18,096,760 356,810 - 40,835,293
216,318 1,404,198 6,404,497 3,018,675 - 11,043,688
472,067 - - 472,067
- 1,237 299,330 2,165,963 - 2,466,530
182,257 48,142 355,393 - 585,792
- - - 4,613 4,613
R - - 414,736 414,736
- - - 7,008,020 7,008,020
164,183 3,936,533 13,518 134,702 (7,648) - 106,595 4,347,883
- 132,729 - - - - 132,729
19,722,945 56,284,545 31,827,611 65,090,744 85,338,210 29,495,011 17,437,727 305,196,793
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2015
—F =%
Bl —EAA = +oEA —E2RFE AFME FHEE
On Up to 1to3 3t012 1to5 Over HHH 4=t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
g B B B B B B B
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions 3,648,010 18,122,402 2,501,295 6,689,467 - - 30,961,174
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,084,486 1,907,861 1,583,009 - 4,575,356
Derivative financial instruments 103,804 76,539 29,472 73,219 19,910 - 302,944
Deposits from customers 90,852,158 55,539,932 34,371,019 31,798,000 5,700,874 - - 218,261,983
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 1,998,248 1,315,194 2,943,651 6,315257 1,376,345 25,987 - 13,974,682
Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale 21,884 - - 21,884
Total liabilities 96,602,220 76,160,437 41,753,298 46,458,952 7,097,129 25,987 - 268,098,023
Net liquidity gap (76,879,275) (19,875,892) (9,925,687) 18,631,792 78,241,081 29,469,024 17,437,727 37,098,770
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WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRiERBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FrErESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) EAH T (&) (B) Maturity analysis (continued)

BB HAH 48Ty The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
1IE (SRITE (88 ) provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such
FATY Z MRS as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than one month
dmEd o ARLEE A as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
R 1 HAZE& instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is reported as
7 Bl EE R S overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the residual
bk TEIRE & maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is
B o WINEEAREIRGH reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if
HoMEZEZ& any.

& REZAETE

P% Fa 5 = 0 0 A

{Fa - FAREIRA

ZE T S AR AR

FlErIR 3 - IR
EHGEEZHEE
AR ARZE
FRIET B T AREEH
Wy o BHBIRZE
E E AT BR (£ T 1 B
B (WHE) -

O ER I HE H B & The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order to
BB HZ R comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The disclosure
G CERTTEE () does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.

FHRAT) Z ARSI

WERHY - TR
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for

non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.

2016
—Z =z
—EARN =MA +-EA —ZFHEF AFEMUEL
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over &=t
1month months months years 5 years Total
bl boiscd beiii3 bt beiye:d beiye:d
FT T FT FT T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 11,793,677 4,861,160 11,299,739 2,780,866 30,735,442
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 1,881,000 817,000 529,000 - 3,227,000
Deposits from customers 158,435,965 50,246,344 48,055,316 1,728,767 - 258,466,392
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - - 556,295 579,673 1,135,968
Other financial liabilities 9,812,259 802,538 4,820,369 62,468 667 15,498,301
Total financial liabilities 181,922,901 56,727,042 65,260,719 5,151,774 667 309,063,103
2015
—F =F
—EAN  =@EA +ZEF —EAE FAEE
Upto 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over Hast
1 month months months years 5 years Total
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 21,779,006 2,508,618 6,731,882 - 31,019,506
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 1,084,500 1,908,000 1,583,500 - - 4,576,000
Deposits from customers 146,416,843 34,462,462 32,206,656 6,056,730 - 219,142,691
Other financial liabilities 3,151,954 2,732,681 6,292,647 506,860 26,038 12,710,180
Total financial liabilities 172,432,303 41,611,761 46,814,685 6,563,590 26,038 267,448,377
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WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERRERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FrErESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
C) #HELNFHEHAEH oW (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZARIMHBEBESR
(&)

(b) FTAETEZ S (b) Derivative cash flows
i
R T A The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
Ep 12 H 31 H contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
DA 6 & &9 5 HH be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
R will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
T EFER PR or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
BEEZITESE undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
e RFTE fair value.
MR ARG E
PTEER TACR
A E I EE
BEBEE) < BRED
SETET AR
AEFITRIN TR
2 B2 1Y HA & 4H
35 Ry R HTELRY
EEHRER -
R [E o R AR The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
BLEE 7 T4 4 mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that
T E AR will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
Fl i T AR swaps.
BRRLREAEE 1T
LT HEEE
BiEEEERR
B -
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis

Derivative financial

instruments settled on

a gross basis

Total inflow
Total outflow

Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis

Derivative financial
instruments settled
on a gross basis

Total inflow
Total outflow

2016
—=z ==

—ERA =ER @A —Z26fF nFEME
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over &=t
1 month months months years 5years Total
baias bz bz bz B B
T FT FT FT T T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
220,874 (8,499) 212,375
22,242,268 11,910,851 18,004,474 52,157,593
(22,210,298) (13,025,286) (19,871,987) - (55,107,571)

2015
—F =%

—{EHAAN =HA  +ZEA —ZHE AFME
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 4zt
1 month months months years 5 years Total
Pl bl g g e i
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(104,510) (2,043) (17,962) (8,160) (132,675)
22,039,048 7,838,682 13,446,442 75,357 43,399,529
(22,024,752) (7,850,203) (13,357,472)  (75,249) - (43,307,676)
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WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErEEE g (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(C) #HALTIEIH 987 (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRITRAER
(&)
(c) & & & & £ 4 (c) Off-balance sheet items
HH
ERRIE Loan commitments
H A &£ H® The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
2016 4£ 12 A 31 at 31 December 2016 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
H 7 28 F K 55 it other facilities totalled HK$91,641,576,000 (2015: HK$86,380,519,000). Those
e 8 K HA loan commitments can be drawn within one year.
B RINER T
H> HE8e8E
s s

91,641,576,000
JC (2015 £
e
86,380,519,000
TL) > WWEEFUK
PEFH — A2

HY -

FUF F5 4 R Fe HoA Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

LUyt

AREEA 2016 £ Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December
12 H 31 HZ W #5 2016 totalled HK$35,050,400,000 (2015: HK$36,313,017,000) are maturing no
& Of B HoA B 7% later than one year.

il < B R A

35,050,400,000
7T (2015 4 :
e
36,313,017,000
L) HEIHHD
A4 -
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4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HAREH

4.4 Capital management
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The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate
the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures and the
internal ratings-based (securitisation) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for
its securitisation exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the
standardised (credit risk) (“STC”) approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the
counterparty.
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MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERERE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BHAREHE (8D

4.4 Capital management (continued)
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The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the general
market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the
approval from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions pursuant to section 317C of the
Banking (Capital) Rules in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Group
continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the market
risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to calculate
the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process
(“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA’s requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2016. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined.
Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been
established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital
utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management
and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the
overall risk profile.
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WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRiERBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREH (8B) 4.4 Capital management (continued)

Hoh s AREEEGEREE In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the
EEARE hEFEEE Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the
EHZEOERBREE implications of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return
FHailtf - B EIREE on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future
FERnE ~ RS [ol# ~ Efe capital requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to
IREF ~ EFEER ~ B ensure the Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
SR df FE ST E A with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
TR RIS (e TEM return and capital adequacy.

RIRE AT R EATK

TR DUORIE B AR AR B

FHTEAT R R ER

HEERE  foakEs®
JE& > PREFRER ~ [Hl e &

EN W g e i

(A) BEBGORLE (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation
EEHENSGEE The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the Bank
WTHIRE (SRITE and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking

BEAR) FHATY A (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance

SRITREIS rEE with HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the
JEfEE Z B A E Bank”.
4HRY - AEEETRER TS
Al Al BRI 5
5 o A7 A BT RS

AR N
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WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREBEE (8)

4.4 BHAREHE (8D

(A) BEESOERRE ()

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

BET T ERIEE The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
é\%?@’ﬁx/@i’iﬁ consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as
BB R E ST & E follows:
PR 8 2 7 2 3
P :
2016 2015
BRI B BN BN
78 Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
AT BT BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEEREEIRITEEAIR Nanyang Commercial Bank
N H] Trustee Limited 16,450 16,341 16,355 16,246
EFESEEEARA Kwong Li Nam Investment
H]| Agency Limited 4,137 4,026 4,248 4,026
EEVEREEIRTT ((REEA) Nanyang Commercial Bank
HIRAE] (Nominees) Limited 1,469 1,469 1,472 1,472
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4. SRERERE (8D

4.4 BHAREHE (8D
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries
of the Bank”.

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
consolidation differ as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

(B) Capital ratio

2016 2015

CET1 capital ratio
14.31% 16.20%
Tier 1 capital ratio 14.31% 16.20%
Total capital ratio 16.19% 18.41%
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4. CREBEE (8)

4.4 BHREHE (8
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation

capital ratios is analysed as follows:

of the above

PeHE— B A TS
il
E TR A

EREAIIR Z ARG SRR
—EEA

MR — A A - B
HIR

fli{ERHEE
AR AL R TH & FAY
PERTHE

ek ok St
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SRR AN
B
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2016 2015
AT ATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
instruments 3,144,517 3,144,517
Retained earnings 28,648,761 25,495,966
Disclosed reserves 6,885,557 8,451,135
CET1 capital before regulatory deductions
38,678,835 37,091,618
CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
Valuation adjustments (18,800) (8,617)
Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities
(100,652) (5,962)
Cash flow hedge reserve 48,098 -
Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
risk on fair valued liabilities
(2,983) (537)
Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
investment properties)
(6,026,176) (6,190,605)
Regulatory reserve for general banking risks
(2,011,223) (2,255,673)
Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
(8,111,736) (8,461,394)
CET1 capital 30,567,099 28,630,224
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Tier 1 capital 30,567,099 28,630,224
Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
reserve for general banking risks eligible for
inclusion in Tier 2 capital 1,304,611 1,109,458
Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,304,611 1,109,458
Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
from the revaluation of land and buildings
(own-use and investment properties) eligible for
inclusion in Tier 2 capital
2,711,779 2,785,772
Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital
2,711,779 2,785,772
Tier 2 capital 4,016,390 3,895,230
Total capital 34,583,489 32,525,454
The capital buffer ratios are analysed as
follows:
A 2016 £ > 2015 4£
12H31H 12H31H
At 31 December At 31 December
2016 2015
Capital conservation buffer ratio 0.625% 0.000%
Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.34% 0.00%
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WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRiERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREH (B) 4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) BEALLE (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
HRiE (R1T¥E (& In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the phase-in from 2016 to 2019 of the
) BRI - 74 2016 Capital Conservation Buffer (“CCB”) is designed to ensure banks build up capital
Z 2019 FRHSPE outside periods of stress of 2.5% of risk-weighted assets(“RWAs”). The Countercyclical
S| APESEEE Capital Buffer (“CCyB*) which is set on an individual country basis and is built up during
A ("CCBEEE ) » periods of excess credit growth to protect against future losses. The HKMA announced
H o2 ERIRTTAE a CCyB for Hong Kong of 0.625% and 1.25% of RWAs from 1 January 2016 and 1
Z BRIRAN I JE January 2017 respectively under the phase in arrangements of Basel Ill, equivalent to
fhitEERE > 2.5% 2.5% once fully phased in.

ZER o WEIA%
E&EA ("CCyB Ik
2 )) AZHERE
EEEERE - A
DEEEM RS
SR R =
ko HeREE
Ja A A I
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2.5% -

HHEARBEN The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section “Regulatory
o &R TR Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.nch.com.hk.
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WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRiERBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREH (B) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(C) HEfRbEE (C) Leverage ratio
2016 2015
BT AEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
— B Tier 1 capital 30,567,099 28,630,224
TERELE R fm R Leverage ratio exposure 379,536,120 339,678,093
TERRLER Leverage ratio 8.05% 8.43%
HRAtES LR 5 The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section
AR SR E R T RAR “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.
|/ T @ H

www.nch.com.hk
o TEEETEE  —
HSIE -

151



%) NCB #1if %% A

WMBERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. BEMNAERNANME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

A DL B EH BB TS All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial

RN ENEENEE statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
M E AR A 2ERIEE13 measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
kT ARERE NES significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input

WARMERERFEANDTE - % that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
RS IR A T AR
FHIRZEZ AIBE MR ER
P - MR EEERS N U EET
HHERPE Y RREHA

ZREE

- Bfgdh c HEEESE - Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
BEERTS R HRE liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain governments, certain
(AREETHEL ) - 24 FE exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious metals.

5 o BUR 3% 77 89 875 T
H - BB G

BRI REE -
- ETJE  THEANEERL - Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
(ziEE 3= L0 e VRS TS ES the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
( [EIFs S o me o\ BT majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote
EEEAEE) oy ER from pricing services vendors. It also includes precious metals and properties with
oy e EE o ek insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

TEREI SN G HILTE
EH -~ R EIRES BUER
JERUEARHIMETS S KT
KRG o [E]RF IR ELAE S AT
EHTGNZRET T A E

RFARATE BRI -
- EEEREAR YRR - Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
AT AR R RN 2= the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investment,
([EI0FEE S aaa\ fEET derivatives and debt instruments with significant unobservable components. It also includes
EEEAE) BRay properties with significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.
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5. BEEMAEHIAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front
offices. Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific
controls include verification of observable pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are
reported to the Management.
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5. BEMAEIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
€:-))

5.1 DA fEREHERT

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
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The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and
obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt instruments and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads
required by the market for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or
can be corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.
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5. BEMAEHIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(8
5.1 PARMESFBHSRET 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
B (&)
TTETHE Derivatives
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OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate or commodity. The fair values of these contracts are mainly measured using
valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The
inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest
rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and volatilities. Unobservable inputs such
as volatility surface may be used for less commonly traded option products which are
embedded in structured deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values
are determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”) are applied
to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors movement,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.
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5. BEMAEHIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.1 DA fEREHERT
8 (&)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A) DAMERIER

(A) Fair value hierarchy

2016
Bk BE_E@%k B8R $EET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SRIEE Financial assets
AEE{ LT AR Financial assets at fair value
Z R E through profit or loss
(BfF5E 20) (Note 20)
X HVWERE - Trading assets
—(Eiae 2 - Debt securities - 3,438,763 - 3,438,763
—FLE R A (S - Financial assets
(bt AR~ designated at fair value
Bl through profit or loss
—([E%EE S - Debt securities - 241,638 - 241,638
TSR TR Derivative financial
(FfE 21) instruments (Note 21) 344,483 551,908 85 896,476
T HESMEE Available-for-sale financial
(B3 24) assets (Note 24)
—(ERE 5 R - Debt securities and
FREE certificates of deposit - 62,329,215 - 62,329,215
&l EE s - Equity securities - - 13,381 13,381
—HA - Others - - 7,768,729 7,768,729
SREEE Financial liabilities
AREE(EET AR Financial liabilities at fair value
ZiemE through profit or loss
(Hd5E 28) (Note 28)
A= - Trading liabilities - 3,223,456 - 3,223,456
TTESRT AR Derivative financial
(FfE 21) instruments (Note 21) 123,638 810,606 - 934,244
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5. BEMAEHIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
€:-))

5.1 DA fEREHERT
8 (&)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A ARERIES (&

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2015
F—lEk g FE=TEEK HEEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERIEE Financial assets
AEEEET AR Financial assets at fair value
ZABRNERE through profit or loss
(FfEE 20) (Note 20)
-REMEE - Trading assets
—EBE T - Debt securities - 6,714,292 - 6,714,292
—FE R LA FO (B - Financial assets
{bEt A2 designated at fair value
ERNEE through profit or loss
—(E5EE 5 - Debt securities - 249,280 - 249,280
TR TR Derivative financial
(FEE 21) instruments (Note 21) 320,134 376,132 - 696,266
ok B R E Available-for-sale financial
(FfFsE 24) assets (Note 24)
—([EGEE 5 - Debt securities and
ke certificates of deposit 2,814,257 49,064,724 - 51,878,981
R EE - Equity securities - - 4,613 4,613
—FAtl - Others - - 472,067 472,067
SRIEE Financial liabilities
AEE LR AR Financial liabilities at fair value
ZEREE through profit or loss
(FfE 28) (Note 28)
XM - Trading liabilities - 4,575,356 - 4,575,356
TTESRT AR Derivative financial
(BdsE 21) instruments (Note 21) 103,804 199,140 - 302,944
REE SRS E & There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
AENENESES Group during the year (2015: Nil).
— BB g
fEIfER% (2015 4F :
fie) -
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5. BEMAEHIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

€-))

5.1 PAREENERT
B (8

(B) HE=|BHVHE %
B

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2016
SREEE
Financial assets
TEER TR THEESHEE
G#83) Available-for-sale
Derivative financial assets

Financial [
Instruments Equity oA
(net) securities Others
BT T AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
2016 1 H 1 H At 1 January 2016 - 4,613 472,067

Wz Gains
- gk - Income statement 85 - (26,305)
- HAtr gl - Other comprehensive
income
- T ERES - Change in fair value of
ANfEE(L available-for-sale

securities - (516) -
B (S Impairment allowance - - .
HA Purchases - 9,284 12,229,735
HH Sales - - (4,906,768)
4EE Settlements - - -
#2016 4 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2016 85 13,381 7,768,729

142016 4£ 12 F 31 H
FrAMEREERF
WET ARG RAARE
B K

Total unrealised gains for
the year included in
income statement for
financial assets held as
at 31 December 2016
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5. BEMAEHIAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

€-))

5.1 PAREENERT
B (8

(B) HE=|BHHE
B (8

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2015
ERIERE
Financial assets
PR TR ]t E R
(33%E) Available-for-sale
Derivative financial assets

Financial (e 25
Instruments Equity HoAh
(net) securities Others
AHTIT HERETTT HAETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201541 H1H At 1 January 2015 4 75,766 -

g Gains
- HAtr gl - Other comprehensive
income
- It e - Change in fair value of
AnfEEL available-for-sale

securities - 11,679 -
BHA Purchases - - 472,067
= Sales - (82,832) -
GEE Settlements (4) - -
2015412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 - 4,613 472,067

2015412 H 31 H Total unrealised gains for

FANESRIEERE the year included in
NEt AW ZEFRARE income statement for
UL a%H financial assets held as

at 31 December 2015 -

159



%) NCB #1if %% A
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5. BEEMAEHIAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, financial instruments categorised as level 3 are
mainly comprised of unlisted equity shares.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are determined with
reference to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are
not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios of
appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value of the underlying
equity investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have increased/decreased by HK$669,000 (2015: HK$231,000).

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as available-for-sale, the Group
obtains valuation quotations from counterparties which may be based on unobservable
inputs with significant impact on the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been
classified by the Group as level 3. The Group has established internal control
procedures to control the Group’s exposure to such financial instruments.

160



%) NCB #1if %% A
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5. BEEMAEHIAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
€:-))

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value
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Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills
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Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear interest at
prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities
The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using the same approach as

those debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in
Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables

The fair value of loans and receivables is determined by using the same approach as those
debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

E43
SN

BT RZAREREE
SRR 5.1 WL e fEET
BHEBE LR R FEHGE
BRHZITEME -

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same approach as those
debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note
5.1.
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5. BEMAEHIAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments

not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being

approximation of fair values.

2016 2015
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
ARTEE ARfE WRIAIE AnfE
BT BT HERETTT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Held-to-maturity 2,063,942 2,109,576 2,466,530 2,557,828
Loans and
receivables 4,759,815 4,773,057 585,792 586,376
Financial liabilities
Debt securities and
certificates of
deposit in issue 1,095,937 1,104,033 - -

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values

disclosed.

Financial assets
Held-to-maturity securities
Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Financial assets
Held-to-maturity securities
Loans and receivables
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2016
FBK FEEK FE=E% #Et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT BT BT BRTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 2,109,576 - 2,109,576
- 1,238,137 3,534,920 4,773,057
- 1,104,033 - 1,104,033

2015
Bl Bk E=EH et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT AT HERETTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 2,557,828 - 2,557,828
- 586,376 - 586,376
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5. BEEMAEHIAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

5.3 PIARMER BHIIEERE

IH

A B i — A {E R
il 50775 B 1 455 e (R A i
EIEERETRAIARE -

REVEEN B

AL 2 IFET] oy By
BV RBE - FrAALE
B2 EYEREED
R HETER A - (S {E
T LA MR BT R 7 M
SHRIHTAMRAFIEST 5
A BT RIS
GEFREEG R NEE
GEAEMZAE  WAEE
1B W) 3% P . 3 8 e TR A
AR - EfSERE
PR AR TR A
S [ B g RN R A
STeml (E 7% - B

FABBRER - (EEITER

PR -

() % -mRsnEs
IR 09 5 35
Fpi

Wy R o6 4R
YRR SE T
EElsti3E bl
AR (T
Btk ) eHH
Bt & A AR
(WAERE)
A LR 5 R
RREEUE PP
SYEHEE M - I
EXLE STk
BEET RN E

oy
W

R Z YIRS
&R A E
B WL RETE
B R OB BH )2 T
55 - AILEEVEEZ
EBE - e A
AAER— BT
LTS e E %
R R

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to
determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the
Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year end. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited,
who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The
Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation methods,
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each
interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change in valuation methods during
the year.

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties
and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the
entire measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC where the
property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent and
capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally observable either directly or
indirectly in these markets.
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5. BEMAEHIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.3 A RMEEFRIIESRL 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
IR (&
EEYERFE (8) Investment properties and premises (continued)
(i) BEFE=lEdAn (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
{HET AR
Wy B Ry 5B = g4k The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is determined using
WMAREEYEZ N either the market comparison approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted
EEE A TS for a premium or a discount specific to the features of the Group’s properties compared
WA AR to the comparable properties.
% AR
GEESNEINEs &Y/ S
Z MR AR AT v (E 3
BRHEE -
T EBEENTES The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
BRSO EBE measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:
SRR AREEY)
EFTER RS E 7T
YNNI § k=
EEE
AR RREN EHIR G
EEITE BERATEERZE Jiliti- S| Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
HAth (e e cor A MEY/E S EEa pllse ie /P anis -20% (R > A ERS -
Other W ANEARE B EgsE s (rE) (2015: -8%) The higher the premium,
properties Market Premium/(discount) the higher the fair value.
comparison on features of the
approach or property compared to s A T EERE -
income comparable properties The higher the discount,
capitalisation the lower the fair value.
approach
L E Era Rl e Y e Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken into account various
ME E2sE s (rE) factors, such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition,
WA =2 Gl Y e floor level, size, layout, with reference to the differences in features with comparable
AERZELEVZEE > § properties.
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5. BEMAEHIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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Precious metals

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets
Investment properties (Note 25)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 26)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 27)
- Precious metals

Non-financial assets
Investment properties (Note 25)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 26)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 27)
- Precious metals

2016
F—E% FE% E=Ek i E
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- - 383,830 383,830
- 326,756 6,378,855 6,705,611
52,338 178,273 - 230,611
2015
LTk LB E=IEER wE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETE BT OBETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 414,736 414,736
- 310,266 6,462,986 6,773,252
- 53,393 - 53,393

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2015: Nil).
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(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2016
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Disposals
Transfer into level 3
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2016

Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31

December 2016

- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2016
JeeREE

Non-financial assets
Y-SR
B
Properties,
plant and
g% equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
414,736 6,462,986
29,340 -
- 5,271
- (66,680)
- (116,962)
- 96,419
- 217,000
- (251,400)
(59,082) 59,082
(1,164) (26,861)
383,830 6,378,855
29,340 -
- 5,271
29,340 5,271
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5. BEMAEHIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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€
5.3 DA RMEEEIESRE 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
IR (&
(B) E=/4RHVIE H @) (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
€:-))
2015
JEBRIEE
Non-financial assets
LUE AT
Bedi]
Properties,
plant and
EYH equipment
Investment B
properties Premises
AT HEETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
20151 H1H At 1 January 2015 1,280,271 6,821,340
Yz Gains
- WasEe - Income statement
- EYFEAERE - Net gain from fair value adjustments on
pecdliog investment properties 35,446 -
-EE i RS - Net gain from revaluation of premises - 2,321
- HAf s - Other comprehensive income
- BEEM - Revaluation of premises - 353,940
e Depreciation - (123,176)
o Additions 2,903 26,099
HE Disposals (901,200) (376,178)
B =E% Transfer out of level 3 - (217,000)
EEC A Reclassification (1,498) 1,498
PEE £ 75 %H Exchange difference (1,186) (25,858)
20154412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 414,736 6,462,986
A 2015 4 12 H 31 HEFAMN Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
JEE R E ENEN T AUGS statement for non-financial assets held as at 31
FH AR BTG HEEH December 2015
- EYEAN EFEE - Net gain from fair value adjustments on
ez investment properties 35,446 -
- BfEFE RS - Net gain from revaluation of premises - 2,321
35,446 2,321
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable
properties during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with
reference to differences in features between the subject properties and the
comparable properties recently transacted in the market. As comparable
properties that come from recent market transactions may be different in each
year, the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and
comparable properties would change from year to year accordingly. As a result,
the significance of adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and
lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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6. Net interest income

Interest income
Due from banks and other financial institutions

Advances to customers

Investment in securities and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Others

Interest expense
Due to banks and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
Others

Net interest income

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2016 2015
BT AEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

1,133,134 1,956,071
5,160,921 5,343,647
1,244,987 1,429,710
11,073 17,056
7,550,115 8,746,484
(401,536) (711,066)
(2,373,115) (3,024,093)
(3,736) -
(236,919) (291,175)
(3,015,306) (4,026,334)
4,534,809 4,720,150

Included within interest income is HK$4,680,000 (2015: HK$1,150,000) of interest with
respect to income accrued on advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31

December 2016.

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$7,526,553,000 (2015:
HK$8,730,926,000) and HK$3,006,737,000 (2015: HK$4,024,530,000), before hedging
effect, for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through

profit or loss respectively.
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7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Loan commissions
Insurance

Bills commissions
Securities brokerage
Funds distribution

Credit card business
Payment services

Safe deposit box

Trust and custody services
Currency exchange

Others

Fee and commission expense
Securities brokerage

Credit card business

Insurance

Payment services

Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from

- financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Z R R A
- IRESE A
- IRESE RS HY

- (ERE R HEAMZEEEE)
- IRHS T A
- MRS T RS

through profit or loss
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

- trust and other fiduciary activities

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense
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2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

471,698 288,530
271,640 145,102
162,975 198,530
158,426 298,548
131,180 162,948
87,045 109,915
56,266 65,442
30,636 26,005
23,075 7,689
502 555
240,223 143,263

1,633,666 1,446,527

(22,785) (40,636)

(8,646) (11,336)
(227) (144)
(18) (22)
(29,919) (37,439)
(61,595) (89,577)

1,572,071 1,356,950

452,128 268,307

(3,677) (3,800)
448,451 264,507
35,463 19,897
(1,388) (1,208)
34,075 18,689
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8. Net trading gain

Net gain/(loss) from
- foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products
- interest rate instruments
- commodities

- equity

9. HithSRIEEFIKZE 9. Net gain on other financial assets

AT R R PR
BB NG e
HAttr

Net gain on available-for-sale securities
Net gain on loans and receivables
Others
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$000
146,678 37,696
17,092 17,171
(29,075) (666)
- (42)
134,695 54,159
2016 2015
BT AEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
91,085 256,051
17 839
100,770 79,531
192,772 336,421
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10. Other operating income

2016 2015
AT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

Dividend income from investment in securities
- Unlisted investments 2,338 7,236
Gross rental income from investment properties 13,311 31,843
Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (2,507) (3,208)
Others 12,917 6,537
27,059 42,408

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$146,000 (2015:
HK$212,000) of direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let

during the year.

Contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income from investment properties” amounted

to HK$456,000 (2015: HK$446,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

11. Net charge of impairment allowances

2016 2015
AT HETT
HK$°000 HK$’000
EEER Advances to customers
{E A EEAS Individually assessed
- Wil - New allowances (585,698) (1,050,285)
- B - Releases 120,001 256,042
- URlEI i ARTE - Recoveries 43,851 19,453
FHE A G SRR E Net charge of individually assessed loan
AR impairment allowances (421,846) (774,790)
AHEFHE Collectively assessed
- iR dEds - New allowances (104,915) (90,957)
- B - Releases 54,823 231,987
- U EIEMEEIRE - Recoveries 1,490 785
Y4 e B E 2 Net (charge)/reversal of collectively assessed loan
g () /#0 impairment allowances (48,602) 141,815
R E R TR Net charge of loan impairment allowances (470,448) (632,975)
BRI SRR Net charge of impairment allowance on loans
#H and receivables financial investments (15,627) -
HAth Others - (349)
BE PR Net charge of impairment allowances (486,075) (633,324)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

12. Operating expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs
- Pension cost
- Supplementary retirement benefits

Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
depreciation)
- Rental of premises
- Information technology
- Others

Depreciation
Auditor’s remuneration
- Audit services
- Non-audit services
Other operating expenses
- Outsourcing activities fee
- Others
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2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000

1,256,081 1,151,425
150,768 152,819
5,190 102,330
1,412,039 1,406,574
256,994 256,906
157,545 169,431
59,717 57,699
474,256 484,036
199,917 222,817
7,084 6,195
4,504 219
219,621 110,765
339,156 401,556
2,656,577 2,632,162
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MBERRMEE (88)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. Y= HE, /A 13. Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments on investment
(EEEL-PaE ey properties

2016 2015

AT BT

HK$°000 HK$'000

HEREYE PGS Net gain from disposal of investment properties - 85,600
BEYIHEA A ERTE Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment

eI e properties 29,340 35,446

29,340 121,046

14. HE BV - 2836 14. Net gain from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and
Mt BEs equipment

2016 2015

AT AT

HK$°000 HK$'000

HEE B 2 1 ilas Net gain from disposal of premises 1,758 17,468
RS ~ [T S R S Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and

2SR fittings (2,893) (543)

HEHEE T Net gain from revaluation of premises 5,271 2,321

4,136 19,246
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15. Taxation

Taxation in the income statement represents:

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation
- Over-provision in prior years

Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation
- Under/(over) -provision in prior years

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
and unused tax credits

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2016 2015
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$'000
430,978 446,508
(8,498) (5,168)
422,480 441,340
198,822 59,758
57 (5,193)
621,359 495,905
(24,214) (14,170)
597,145 481,735

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas

profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other countries
Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes
Tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses
Over-provision in prior years

Foreign withholding tax

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate
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2016 2015
T HERETTT
HK$’000 HK$'000

3,344,522 3,378,512

551,846 557,454
55,331 28,680
(29,401) (88,297)
27,465 48,460
1 1

(15) 9)
(8,441) (10,361)
359 (54,193)
597,145 481,735
17.85% 14.26%
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WeEENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
16. R 16. Dividends

2016 2015
sl G (=1l Y
i BT HE ARTIT
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$000
AR R Interim dividends - - 77.5 542,500
2016 A E RIS 2015 No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:

4 1 % 542,500,000 TT) HK$542,500,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

(a) FEftkatEl

REEGTAEBETH
FHAE SRR # 1 2 R (o
TR ER o 2 R R IR
] R R PRk T 2 5 T
at#l o MRRCER IR
# e SR RSB (R H
28 A HRCR HE A &
Z 5% etz & H K
REEEAHKZ 5%z
15% A F (e 2 2R
/) - B B AR
TEATR R e Ik B
MRISEEZDN 10 LEPL L5
T UCHL 100% 2 {2
K - IRES 3 2 9
YR T AR PR &% 1k
i FH 391 C ol B ER o2 e ok
Fh) > FTUHL 30%% 90%
Z g EBERK - e U
EBR HZ CGREMEATE
EETHEIPRBT) FIR -

W (SRR 2000
12 5 1 HEh > AL
TR B P R ORa i 2 iR
EETHE] ZETHI AR
TR R LB Rk (S LA
[RAE B EH AT
BUPR SR (R & B LA
fRAE -

#E 2016 12 A 31 H »
EHIERLHER 502,000 T
(2015 4 @ &9 % ¥
887,000 ) ZIZUXHERK
1% R IR NGB R 4E
HE4 By e 43,695,000 T
(2015 4 @ &% W
39,917,000 7T ) » ffiA< 22 E]
BRI Gt Pk
HI4 B ki 9,313,000 7T
(2015 4 @ &% W
8,184,000 7T ) °

(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes exempted
under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme.
Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes
equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly contributions equal
to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service. The
employees are entitled to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of service.
Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions
at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons
other than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are
subject to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the Group
also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is
BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounting to approximately HK$43,695,000 (2015: approximately
HK$39,917,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$502,000
(2015: approximately HK$887,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed
approximately HK$9,313,000 (2015: approximately HK$8,184,000) for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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R (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
17. BAREFIFSE (&) 17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) FEFZSETET (b) Defined benefit schemes

AEERE T —BIEFE The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its retired employees. Under
e EF BRI & the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement benefits which included fully redeemed
FRIECBIRE L 1F&%: medical care, housing allowance and other retirement benefits.

&I BTG LB AR
BREREZRR FRE

S FMURARAER] -
IR Et 0 T SRR R e R IR The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the life expectancy for
RE T2 a4 an H AL pensioners.

BLUER| =z AR IEE{E 2 The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligations
e —HIEEEER 2016 were carried out at 31 December 2016 by using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
££ 12 H 31 HLIFEI R method.
A B b B E AT
o
TEARSREHHAR T 2 T2 The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
BRI
2016 2015
PrERR Discount rate (%) 2.2 2.0
THHEASE R R i B = 3 R 2R (%) Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%) 6.0 6.0
TEEAR R G E A I R (%) Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases
(%) 0.0 0.0
TEHA B RS Simp S B Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases
(%) (%) 0.0 0.0
TEHEAFH 3 -2 (%) Expected rate of rental increases (%) 3.0 3.0
TEHABE R (%) Expected rate of withdrawal (%) 3.0-18.0 3.0-18.0
FEEIFET R Expected death rate FEAOLGR EHEALLEGR
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Life Tables Life Tables
2012 2012
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R (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
17. BAREFIFSE (&) 17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) FEFizsetal (&) (b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
TEA S B R 3 SRS B A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end of the reporting
2 BRSO period is shown below:
2016
FEFIZSER] FUEFIZER]
A&/ AW/
(B> (B
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
EERbE 0 in defined Bz =7 in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
inrate  obligations inrate  obligations
BT BT T
% HK$°000 % HK$°000
PrER Discount rate 0.1 (1,850) 0.1 2,450
THHHSS R R e B Expected rate of medical
insurance cost 0.5 10,990 0.5 (9,050)
2015
S el fa ] FUEF s tE A
ARYEZ e/ iyl
CR) CR)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
B in defined (BRsy 57l in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
HEEETTT BT
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
PR Discount rate 0.1 (2,010) 0.1 2,070
THHAS (R R i R Expected rate of medical
insurance cost 0.5 10,540 0.5 (9,140)
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BRI (8D
17. BREFIRS (8D

(b) FEFIzEtE (&)

UM T RARIR IR
TE R GEEB RS
FUEM e tm A RIE 2 28 -

FESFE W RN AT
FERBESZAT -

FRIEA T
- BB EA
- BERBEA
STHIS [
STE s
- FHEE M

HZH

FESHE BT R IR A

STEIAAERE ST
FRIEAzEt
- RSB DELHIER
Wrgs
- KERRE AR R
i

& R R RS UE
FpRAES >

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates

the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect of the plan

is as follows:

2016 2015
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000

Defined benefit schemes
- Current service cost 2,510 -

- Past service cost

- plan introduction - 102,330
- plan amendment 660 -
- Net interest cost 2,020 -
Total expenses 5,190 102,330

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

respect of the plan is as follows:

2016 2015
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Defined benefit schemes
- Actuarial gains arising from changes in
assumptions (4,700) -
- Actuarial losses arising from experience
adjustments 6,400 -
Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in comprehensive income 1,700 -
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(b) FEFZEETE (H)

AETHIFVEREZETAT -

EFAME

B1HA1H

B R R
BRI RA

- BtH#ISIE

- aHEIE
FHIEE
H¥eTEAREEE
TR

K12 H 31 H

AFE R G AR B AR K
ZHARSZAIT ¢

AR 12 {li H B
2FFE 5

6 F£F 10 &
10

TRHLERSL

FRER S R AR AL s 1]
RZ TSR 20 £ -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

The movement in respect of the plan is as follows:

2016 2015
BT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Benefit liability
At 1 January 102,330 -
Current service cost 2,510 -
Past service cost
- plan introduction - 102,330
- plan amendment 660 -
Net interest cost 2,020 -
Actuarial losses on remeasurement 1,700 -
Benefit paid (2,660) -
At 31 December 106,560 102,330
Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future
years are as follows:
2016 2015
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Within the next 12 months 2,920 2,550
Between 2 and 5 years 12,140 10,620
Between 6 and 10 years 16,960 15,230
Over 10 years 231,140 216,660
Total expected payments 263,160 245,060

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period is

20 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. X ~ 585 A B K& 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEANBME
(a) EEHE

ARG H AR
TEERRRTRE
HIft N =ieft 2k
i A R HEUR
Wz PR T

s
FAth A

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in respect
of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group

during the year are as follows:

Fees
Other emoluments
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2016 2015
AT HBRT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,269 1,184
12,272 9,119
13,541 10,303
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MIBERRMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. X -~ 585 A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEAEME (8D (continued)
(b) CG-5 FE&EHA (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

B R EZEANERTHHE
weEE%EY > CG-5 Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the HKMA,
(T2 iy BTN 5 details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group
1) KEEARKER during the year are as follows:
EREE A R T
NBHTHBIEEST
(i) PMEERFFHIETEN (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2016
EHEE AR FEAR
Senior Management Key Personnel
JETE ) . JREE X .
Non- BT dact Non- AT -
deferred  Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT AB%TRT BETT BT T BETIT ABETT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(&1 7 S Fixed remuneration
ko Cash 20,972 - 20,972 9,406 - 9,406
BTN Variable remuneration
B Cash 6,046 928 6,974 3,487 - 3,487
27,018 928 27,946 12,893 - 12,893
2015
EEEAE FEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
FEIRAE FEIRIE
Non- HEAE daEt Non- IEHE HEET
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(5] Fixed remuneration
B Cash 10,688 - 10,688 6,107 - 6,107
b ) B Variable remuneration
B Cash 4,391 838 5,229 2,171 - 2,171
15,079 838 15,917 8,278 - 8,278
DLEFFIELHS 13 & The remuneration above includes 13 (2015: 4) members of Senior Management
(2015 4F 4 ) =4k and 7 (2015: 5) members of Key Personnel.
EHABRK 742015

F154) FHAE -
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MIBERRMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. X -~ 585 A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEAEME (8D (continued)
(b) CG-5 FE&EHA (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

B R EEANBHHH
(&)

(it) IEFEHH

MR
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(continued)

(ii) Deferred remuneration

2016 2015
SHEEAR EAETA S
Senior FEAB Senior FEAE
Management Key Personnel Management Key Personnel
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred remuneration
Vested 637 - 521 -
Unvested 1,668 - 1,377 -
2,305 - 1,898 -
At 1 January 1,377 - 1,060 -
Awarded 928 - 838 -
Paid out (637) - (521) -
Reduced through
performance
adjustments - - - -
At 31 December 1,668 - 1,377 -

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel mentioned in this
section are defined according to the HKMA's Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System.

- Senior Management: The senior executives directly managed by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including
Managing Director, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Executive Committee
Members, Heads of Executive Committee Working Group, Chief Strategy Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Technology Officer, Board Secretary,
Head of Audit Department and other particular personnel.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of
material business lines, Head of Treasury, as well as Head of Risk Management
Department.
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WEENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
19. EEHSRENIRFT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

AR

FR SR TRUSEER

7 I SRAT R M < R S
HIGEER

FESRAT e HoAth e Rl — (8
HNEIZ SE I

20. AnEB{EETARE 20

ZEREE

A MESIEE At fair value

[EE=3 Treasury bills
HAth{&#5:5%  Other debt
securities

2016 2015
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Cash 561,587 594,148
Balances with central banks 18,761,393 16,038,647
Balances with banks and other financial institutions
3,392,991 6,232,044
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
maturing within one month 29,611,612 31,379,966
52,327,583 54,244,805
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
RERIAREEE
FrABS Z SRl EE
Financial assets
T EMEE designated at fair value =t
Trading assets through profit or loss Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
BT AHTIT BT AHTIT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
3,438,763 6,714,292 - 3,438,763 6,714,292
241,638 249,280 241,638 249,280
3,438,763 6,714,292 241,638 249,280 3,680,401 6,963,572
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:

Debt securities
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Total securities

FERUARESE
ARG SRIKE

Financial assets

Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns
Corporate entities

Total securities
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RHMEE designated at fair value
Trading assets through profit or loss

2016 2015 2016 2015
AT BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- - 241,638 249,280
3,438,763 6,714,292 - -
3,438,763 6,714,292 241,638 249,280

AEREUAAEEL

AR SRS E

Financial assets

REMEE designated at fair value

Trading assets through profit or loss
2016 2015 2016 2015
BT T AT BT T AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$'000
3,438,763 6,714,292 - -
- - 241,638 249,280
3,438,763 6,714,292 241,638 249,280
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21. T4 SR T EHE¥H 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate, commodity and equity
related derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a future
date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, silver swaps)
or a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate, precious metal and equity options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the
obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set
period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller
receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between
the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for example,
exchange-traded stock option).
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21. T4 SR T HESH 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments held by the
Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these instruments
indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and certain of
them provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on the balance
sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved
or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
market interest rates, metal prices or equity prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair
values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer business. The Group strictly
follows risk management policies and requirement in providing derivative products to our
customers and in trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A derivative
instrument must be included in the approved product list before any transactions for that
instrument can be made. There are limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising
from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative
transaction must be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market
revaluation, reporting and control.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TSR T EHE$H 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency

options
- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Commodity contracts

financial instrument as at 31 December:

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of each class of derivative

2016

AREHEA

A

Not qualified for
"E [ hedge gt
Trading Hedging accounting Total
BT BT T BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
14,183,037 - - 14,183,037
33,099,594 6,983,272 - 40,082,866
13,885 - - 13,885
13,885 - - 13,885
47,310,401 6,983,272 - 54,293,673
37,943,200 - 231,866 38,175,066
3,464,165 - - 3,464,165
88,717,766 6,983,272 231,866 95,932,904
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MBERRMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TSR T EHE$H 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
gt (8)

(a) F7&£mTH (&) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
2015
AEFERA
hgtiA
Not qualified
== for hedge 4a=t
Trading accounting Total
AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[ERELY Exchange rate contracts
BIHH Rz 3z EH Spot and forwards 8,420,500 - 8,420,500
5iHH Swaps 37,601,988 - 37,601,988
SNEAZ S HARE Foreign currency options
- B AHAE - Options purchased 9,135 - 9,135
- B HARE - Options written 9,135 - 9,135
46,040,758 - 46,040,758
FIREH Interest rate contracts
5iHA Swaps 33,758,773 231,725 33,990,498
BErmagy Commodity contracts 26,438 - 26,438
79,825,969 231,725 80,057,694
FRERAEhgstE Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts which do not qualify as hedges for
FyiEE (SRITE (P ) R accounting purposes but are managed in conjunction with the financial instruments
AN 0K LI R RT designated at fair value through profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance with
G AER B the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

B TE DL B &L 2
RARNE# THE—HE
BT THEY -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TSR T EHE$H 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

it (80D
(@) PTEEM TR (&)

AR T A R

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of derivative financial

HiN12 H31 HZ /A mE: instrument as at 31 December:
2016
DREHE AREER
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
FRARA FrRI&ERA
P ERE B HEEE
Not Not
qualified qualified
HE  AREM  for hedge fET HE g for hedge gt
Trading Hedging accounting Total  Trading Hedging accounting Total
AT BETT BT B¥TT B¥TT BBt AT AYTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PSR A4 Exchange rate
contracts
B RS Spot and
forwards 595,124 595,124 (350,145) - - (350,145)
A Swaps 184,153 95,101 279,254 (126,540) (202,040) - (328,580)
SN Z HIRE Foreign
currency
options
- EAIRE - Options
purchased 499 499 - - - -
- B - Options
written - - (499) - - (499)
779,776 95,101 874,877 (477,184) (202,040) - (679,224)
FIREL] Interest rate
contracts
A Swaps 9,210 9,210 (9,208) - (8,431)  (17,639)
e Commodity
contracts 12,389 12,389 (237,381) - - (237,381)
801,375 95,101 896,476 (723,773) (202,040) (8,431) (934,244)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TSR T EHE$H 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

it (80D

() TTAERTR ()

MR G
RIS e 5
ff0
SIS Z S

- HAME
- HHE

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency

options
- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Commodity contracts

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2015
ARMEEE ARERE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
AFEFEERA &R
¥EEhA Eapi I 7
Not Not
- qualified N - qualified .
HHE for hedge #s HAE for hedge dEst
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
373,801 373,801 (207,309) - (207,309)
311,226 311,226 (65,690) - (65,690)
15 15 - - -
- (15) - (15)
685,042 685,042 (273,014) - (273,014)
11,135 11,135 (12,296) (17,516) (29,812)
89 89 (118) - (118)
696,266 696,266 (285,428) (17,516) (302,944)
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21. TSR T EHE$H 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
gt (8)

(a) F7&£mTH (&) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
TRIIHCTEEM T E The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the derivative financial
Z S EE e EE instruments and is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
S BHEBEARTELE return of capital adequacy ratio.

R GERREHIER
EEANINE

2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
[EREL Exchange rate contracts
i Forwards 236,167 60,422
L Swaps 213,873 190,122
SNBSS F SR Foreign currency options
- H AN - Options purchased 124 23
450,164 250,567
lES=ES| Interest rate contracts
L Swaps 37 10,111
450,201 260,678
(E & E\ i B aE AR B The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with the Banking
GBRITEE (&) #HHD) =t (Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the
B o LEEEHORA RS 5 F maturity characteristics of each type of contract.
ZIEM R B EEZ BAR
Tk -
N B2 B B R R R R 4 The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting agreements for the
B AMNTTEL S A Group amounted to HK$450,268,000 (2015: HK$190,872,000) and the effect of valid
o OH 4 O R & K bilateral netting agreements amounted to HK$126,038,000 (2015: HK$19,879,000).

450,268,000 77:( 2015 4 :
H#2 190,872,000 1) > &
Y R SE E R I AL
ok kie 126,038,000 T
( 2015 4 : H
19,879,000 7©) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TSR T EHE$H 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

it (80D
(b) BHEE

SUE R TR Z0TE
&R T AN 12 5 31 H
HyASREATT

2 sy kS b

e
SR A A
RO RIEHGHTE RN
AR EBHIR R
REETEIIRME -
EWHE BERIE -

SRR A o 2 W
g BRI W e P T
2 (2015 4 @ fE) -

(b) Hedge accounting

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments as
at 31 December are as follows:

2016 2015
HiE =i HiE =t
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BT AT AT T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash flow
hedges 95,101 (202,040) - -

Cash flow hedges

The group used cross-currency interest rate swap to minimise the cash flow fluctuation of
interbank borrowing triggered by foreign exchange risks and interest rate risk.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income statement
during the year (2015: Nil).
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MBERM=E () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. S B EHAMERIE 22. Advances and other accounts
2016 2015
AT ARTIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
EPNEE Personal loans and advances 38,210,006 34,515,588
INEERR Corporate loans and advances 149,570,956 121,721,186
ZEE Advances to customers 187,780,962 156,236,774
EHCORERERE (M 23) Loan impairment allowances (Note 23)
- F{E RS - Individually assessed (474,147) (433,567)
- A EEHE - Collectively assessed (852,377) (951,336)
186,454,438 154,851,871
=] Trade bills 5,665,154 14,072,143
192,119,592 168,924,014
2016 F£ 12 H31H & As at 31 December 2016, advances to customers included accrued interest of
FE AT ETF B AR HK$601,123,000 (2015: HK$396,489,000).
601,123,000 7T (2015 4F :
ki 396,489,000 T ) -
2016 412 H 31 H 4 As at 31 December 2016, no impairment allowance was made in respect of trade bills (2015:

A 5 ERE T Nil).
{E e (2015 4F @ 48) -
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23. EER{E EH 23. Loan impairment allowances
2016
FE A
Individually assessed
fELA AT At
Personal Corporate Total
BT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
2016 F£1H1H At 1 January 2016 18,167 415,400 433,567
Uz, (B ) Charged/(credited) to income
statement (4,248) 426,094 421,846
RS 2 R E &R Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (1,461) (384,313) (385,774)
Y[ EAEEREE Recoveries 3,464 40,387 43,851
P ELRAE A Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - (4,680) (4,680)
PE Exchange difference (1,217) (33,446) (34,663)
#2016 4 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2016 14,705 459,442 474,147
2016
HReH A ETL
Collectively assessed
A AT st
Personal Corporate Total
BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
72016 F£1H1H At 1 January 2016 63,965 887,371 951,336
PR, (B Charged/(credited) to income
statement 103,425 (54,823) 48,602
FEAMES 2 AU E R Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (116,169) - (116,169)
W B E SR T Recoveries 1,490 - 1,490
P 57 72 %H Exchange difference (2,796) (30,086) (32,882)
#2016 F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2016 49,915 802,462 852,377
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23. EFKEEM (&) 23.Loan impairment allowances (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2015
Fe(ERIRHE
Individually assessed

5N N Hest

Personal Corporate Total

BT HARETT AT IT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

20154 1H1H At 1 January 2015 17,298 714,300 731,598

U R st Charged to income statement 16,063 758,727 774,790
RS 2 R E &R Loans written off during the year

as uncollectible (14,983) (1,015,305) (1,030,288)

W e EAEE R Recoveries 1,762 17,691 19,453

P ELRAE A Unwind of discount on impairment

allowances - (1,150) (1,150)

PR 7=%E Exchange difference (1,973) (58,863) (60,836)

20154 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 18,167 415,400 433,567

2015
A ERHE
Collectively assessed
DN A s

Personal Corporate Total

BT AT AIETIT

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000

2015 1H1H At 1 January 2015 98,864 1,139,658 1,238,522

U SRR Charged to income statement 90,172 (231,987) (141,815)
FEAMES 2 AU &R Loans written off during the year

as uncollectible (117,742) - (117,742)

W B E SR T Recoveries 785 - 785

P 57 72 %H Exchange difference (8,114) (20,300) (28,414)

20154 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 63,965 887,371 951,336
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Financial investments

2016
HARMETR SR AT IR
At fair value At amortised cost
A HEHIE
SREE FEZ
Available-  EFIHH®BE SERREKEK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and Lt
assets securities receivables Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Treasury bills 27,295,389 1,856,312 - 29,151,701
Other debt securities 20,126,675 207,630 1,240,319 21,574,624
47,422,064 2,063,942 1,240,319 50,726,325
Certificates of deposit 14,907,151 - - 14,907,151
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 62,329,215 2,063,942 1,240,319 65,633,476
Equity securities 13,381 - - 13,381
Others 7,768,729 - 3,519,496 11,288,225
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815 76,935,082
2015
EAINIERTIES T H AT (R
At fair value At amortised cost
L
BREEE Az
Available-  FHIHzEZ:  SRURERGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and Q5
assets securities receivables Total
AT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Treasury bills 18,118,392 2,257,798 - 20,376,190
Other debt securities 22,716,901 208,732 585,792 23,511,425
40,835,293 2,466,530 585,792 43,887,615
Certificates of deposit 11,043,688 - - 11,043,688
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 51,878,981 2,466,530 585,792 54,931,303
Equity securities 4,613 - - 4,613
Others 472,067 - - 472,067
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792 55,407,983
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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24. SRS (&) 24. Financial investments (continued)
SRS EE F i 558 Financial investments is analysed by place of listing as follows:
Wr e
2016
EH_J%&%
SRIEE HEZR
Available-  ZFHAE#ESR T EIBGRR
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(B85 MRS Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- REBLET - Listed in Hong Kong 5,538,663 - -
- NEADSN - Listed outside Hong Kong 7,456,152 97,678 -
12,994,815 97,678 -
- JEEMW - Unlisted 49,334,400 1,966,264 1,240,319
62,329,215 2,063,942 1,240,319
[ifdharice= Equity securities
- JEEH - Unlisted 13,381 - -
FAth Others
- JEEMW - Unlisted 7,768,729 - 3,519,496
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815
HFAEZEIHHZ FhisEs Market value of listed held-to-maturity
e securities 99,043
2015
Ak e
BRERE FEE
Available-  FHHIEZ  ERORERGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB ARG Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- RE&LN - Listed in Hong Kong 3,219,469 B _
- WEBUS BT - Listed outside Hong Kong 6,265,404 42,543 -
9,484,873 42,543 -
- JEET - Unlisted 42,394,108 2,423,987 585,792
51,878,981 2,466,530 585,792
¥ dhEces Equity securities
- FELTH - Unlisted 4,613 - -
Hotr Others
- FELT - Unlisted 472,067 - -
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792
FAEZFIHE 2 LiiEs Market value of listed held-to-maturity
H{E securities 43,286
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SRR T ST 2 oy
*EﬁDT

i

BHES
IN-ETS
ST RSt b
AT

L\

> om
1
Sl

B>
e
a3) mE o

f R

L

.
-

I

* BEAE (BRTTZE (AR #RADD
R 8 Ry s T B B A T {8
e &M E E B
2,486,182,000 7T (2015 4 :
i 1,397,813,000 7T) FEF
EEFHHEEREE
109,953,000 7T (2015 4F :
#% 111,195,000 7T ) »

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Financial investments (continued)

Financial investments is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

2016
Tk
ERYEE BHEZ
Available-  FHAH®ESH HRRIEBGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
AT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Sovereigns 15,847,705 1,375,850 -
Public sector entities* 2,486,182 109,953 -
Banks and other financial institutions 43,820,989 480,461 4,759,815
Corporate entities 7,956,449 97,678 -
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815
2015
ke
BRERE FE®E
Avallable- BiHEE  SERRIERGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Sovereigns 17,267,770 1,690,727 -
Public sector entities* 1,397,813 111,195 -
Banks and other financial institutions 27,633,868 567,071 355,393
Corporate entities 6,056,210 97,537 230,399
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792

* Included available-for-sale financial assets of HK$2,486,182,000 (2015: HK$1,397,813,000) and
held-to-maturity securities of HK$109,953,000 (2015: HK$111,195,000) which are eligible to be
classified as public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

201



25 NCB #1if A% 4 A

M BRI ()
24. SRR (8

SRS A BT

#2016 1 H 1 H

il

R ~ M) R E
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24. Financial investments (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The movements in financial investments are summarised as follows:

At 1 January 2016

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

Impairment during the year

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2015

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2015

202

2016
TR E

SRIEE HEZR
Available-  ZIFAHZZSF SRURIBUGR
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792
101,143,245 - 4,760,501
(82,239,818) (278,026) (581,015)
(21,407) 3,088 9,611
(474,313) - -
(652,043) (127,650) 553
- - (15,627)
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815

2015
e

BRERE ESYEES
Available-  F[HIHEZ  SRURERGK
for-sale Held-to- Loans
financial maturity and
assets securities receivables
BT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
42,475,340 2,618,390 2,074,594
64,175,644 - 1,800,033
(52,574,718) - (3,193,198)
(80,925) 6,900 (46,354)
280,066 - -
(1,919,746) (158,760) (49,283)
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792
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BRI B Z B S

AT

W1H1H
PR EER
b S0 A2

P12 4 31 H

24. Financial investments (continued)

At 1 January
Impairment during the year
Exchange difference

At 31 December

203

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The movements in impairment allowances on loans and receivables are summarised as
follows:

2016 2015

BT BT

HK$°000 HK$'000
15,627
(203)
15,424
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Investment properties

R1IA1H

WE

e

A FlEWEE

HHTHE Y5 - S5
Feasefs (HfsE 26)

b ST A2

K12 H 31 H

REYE 2 IR AE T HEY
FIERHPRIATA0T

TETEHBRA
R (848 50 )
Ay (10 £4£2 50 48 )

TEBEELSMNGA
THIHEY (10 422 50 42)

#2016 412 H 31 H » 5
NEEAFRENZIKEY)
¥ TR TR AT
HgsMEFENTT A R ER
2016 4 12 A 31 HELAR
H AR T 2 B
B - SEfEEtRE RS
AP RAH BN T [
528 BT —HE
BYSETERUSHIERS -

2016 2015

BT BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

At 1 January 414,736 1,280,271

Additions - 2,903

Disposals - (901,200)

Fair value gains 29,340 35,446
Reclassification to properties, plant and

equipment (Note 26) (59,082) (1,498)

Exchange difference (1,164) (1,186)

At 31 December 383,830 414,736

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the

leases as follows:

2016 2015
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 244,290 248,590
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 139,540 145,820

Held outside Hong Kong
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) - 20,326
383,830 414,736

As at 31 December 2016, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2016 on the basis of their fair value by an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price
that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly transaction with market

participants at the measurement date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. Properties, plant and equipment

B ~ BEERH
R
Equipment,
BE fixtures and {E=t
Premises fittings Total
AT AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
2016 F1H1HZ Net book value at
HEmEDFE 1 January 2016 6,773,252 234,768 7,008,020
e Additions 131,175 80,646 211,821
e Disposals (50,810) (4,643) (55,453)
Esth Revaluation (59,114) - (59,114)
e Depreciation for the year (119,939) (79,978) (199,917)
A R Reclassification from
(FfEE 25) investment properties
(Note 25) 59,082 - 59,082
bt T2 A Exchange difference (28,035) (6,997) (35,032)
2016 412 H 31 H> Net book value at
MR HE 31 December 2016 6,705,611 223,796 6,929,407
2016 412 H 31 H At 31 December 2016
PAE B S E Cost or valuation 6,705,611 836,637 7,542,248
BRI Accumulated depreciation - (612,841) (612,841)
2016 412 H 31 H> Net book value at
MR HE 31 December 2016 6,705,611 223,796 6,929,407
it E 2 i A E B S E The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
pariis: NN
2016412 H 31 H At 31 December 2016
FREAE At cost - 836,637 836,637
RS E At valuation 6,705,611 - 6,705,611
6,705,611 836,637 7,542,248
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

€
B~ [EE R
&
FEE  Equipment, fixtures 4=t
Premises and fittings Total
HARETIT HARETIT ARTIT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
20151 H1H>Z Net book value at
HEENFE 1 January 2015 7,035,310 293,187 7,328,497
BTy Additions 27,237 47,003 74,240
e Disposals (381,098) (650) (381,748)
=i Revaluation 377,219 - 377,219
e Depreciation for the year (127,328) (95,489) (222,817)
Er SR E A Reclassification from
(M3 25) investment properties
(Note 25) 1,498 - 1,498
PR S A= H Exchange difference (26,857) (9,283) (36,140)
SR ESE Classified as assets held
for sale (132,729) - (132,729)
2015412 H 31 H> Net book value at
WRTHHE 31 December 2015 6,773,252 234,768 7,008,020
2015412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015
A BB Cost or valuation 6,773,252 820,038 7,593,290
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation - (585,270) (585,270)
2015412 H 31 H> Net book value at
WRTHHE 31 December 2015 6,773,252 234,768 7,008,020
balcgEE > A EE S E The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
ST
2015412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015
R AE At cost - 820,038 820,038
e At valuation 6,773,252 - 6,773,252
6,773,252 820,038 7,593,290
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26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(8

R Z IR A 4R bR
SRR T

TEEERA
R (8 50 4)
THIFHEY (10 4228 50 )

TEBEELSIMNGA
LY (10 4£ZE 50 48)
RIS (DBt 10 4)

#2016 4F 12 A 31 H -5
NEEARERAZFE T
WIS AT = AT AC
REHETT AR AR, 2016
12 H 31 HRAAE R
FEAEFT (T Z BEEA(E - Y
REEEEE HELEA
FRFF BAC Y IE L T [ T 45
2WELEE—HEENRE
HUSHIERS -

MRIE Al B fhEESR PR
HEBEE R FFEE G
pdiene i L IR

Hach EE R 2 Eh
(fE),v41E
TRCU R R E A (E

42016 ££ 12 A 31 H » &
R E R E IR RS
ITEESING  AEEZ HES
RN 2 P E MR I E e
ky HE W& 728,077,000 7T
(2015 & : & W
607,766,000 ) °

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
follows:

2016 2015
BT T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 3,951,487 4,602,693
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 2,155,234 1,666,127

Held outside Hong Kong
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 576,025 485,875
On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 22,865 18,557
6,705,611 6,773,252

As at 31 December 2016, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried
out at 31 December 2016 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be
received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at the
measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and the income statement as follows:

2016 2015
BT T AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000

(Decrease)/increase in valuation credited to
premises revaluation reserve (64,385) 374,898

Increase in valuation credited to income

statement 5,271 2,321
(59,114) 377,219

As at 31 December 2016, the net book value of premises that would have been included in
the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation was HK$728,077,000 (2015: HK$607,766,000).
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27. HEfrEE 27. Other assets
2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e d =z Repossessed assets 84,952 98,469
HEE Precious metals 230,611 53,393
JREUS IR R PR Accounts receivable and prepayments 564,424 4,143,369
879,987 4,295,231
28. A fEE(EsT AJEZE 28. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Z SREE
2016 2015
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
R E AR Trading liabilities
- INERSTEE RESR - Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and
AERE Notes 3,223,456 4,575,356
2016412 H 31 HGA At 31 December 2016, there was no financial liabilities designated at fair value through
FUE R LA B LE A profit or loss (2015: Nil).

Hii 2 SRIET (2015 4
127 31H :48) -
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29. BEEE G Ehars 29. Deposits from customers and hedge accounting

(@) BEEFER (a) Deposits from customers
2016 2015
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
HIEHFR S AR AR AT Demand deposits and current accounts
- NH] - Corporate 38,043,836 26,763,884
- {EA - Personal 2,984,973 2,767,262
41,028,809 29,531,146
FEET Savings deposits
- NH] - Corporate 21,191,418 19,930,314
- {EA - Personal 40,575,220 39,071,432
61,766,638 59,001,746
TEHH ~ FHHH BB AERR Time, call and notice deposits
- NH] - Corporate 103,954,603 81,285,911
- A - Personal 50,777,480 48,443,180
154,732,083 129,729,091
257,527,530 218,261,983
(b) $fdarst (b) Hedge accounting
FSINEE S HEEE B Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
B 2016 /£ 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2016, there was no RMB-denominated deposits from customers
H 2B ANREEHEN designated as a hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign
B P IEAHTUE Ry e operations (2015: Nil).
TH » HPE A NE
PEFHEE (2015 4F «
W T e
NG H HERER o 2 UL There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income statement
T BV S TR U 2 25 PRI T during the year (2015: Nil).

70 (2015 4 @ f/®) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30. EBfTEBES&EFE 30. Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

oA

e 23 B fkee - Fectl g
JAS R

T

- 1Rk
- Bt fEsES 5

31. HAMARIE R R

HAFE(TRIH
Al

Debt securities and certificates of deposit, at

amortised cost

- Certificates of deposit
- Other debt securities

31. Other accounts and provisions

Other accounts payable
Provisions
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2016 2015
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
541,378 -
554,559 -
1,095,937 -
2016 2015
BT T o
HK$’°000 HK$'000
15,836,284 12,901,186
72,424 73,614

15,908,708 12,974,800
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32. MRIERIIH

BIERIARIRE TGt
RANEEL125% TSI 5
Bl REAAE B

32. Deferred taxation

SLELAE P R M R T
Epa v &N S

FfRIE IR e -

BEARRNZELRIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheet,

EiE) JAETFEAEAS and the movements during the year are as follows:
DU HARAEFEN 2 S 8
T
2016
DR EE
et
Accelerated YIREERL FREREH
tax Property B5i8  Impairment Hih sa=t
depreciation  revaluation Losses allowances Others Total
BT T BT BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
#2016 4 At 1 January
1H1H 2016 18,156 1,054,384 (33,609) (136,641) (95,900) 806,390
fgse (&38) Charged/(credited)
fremen to income
statement 8,036 5,592 31,511 22,458 (91,811) (24,214)
SELHAM A Credited to other
iy comprehensive
income (21,645) - - (125,625) (147,270)
PR f2 725 %H Exchange difference (3,752) 2,098 3,128 (1,357) 117
A 2016 & At 31 December
12H31H 2016 26,192 1,034,579 (111,055) (314,693) 635,023
2015
InETEs
RAREH
Accelerated VIEELS A A
tax Property K518 Impairment oA 4t
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances Others Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A 2015 & At 1 January
1H1H 2015 30,906 1,090,064 - (258,170) (28,498) 834,302
(&%) g (Credited)/charged
EaES to income
statement (12,750) (12) (34,976) 116,781 (83,214) (14,170)
(&), fEscH (Credited)/charged
4= TR to other
Wz comprehensive
income - (10,657) - - 15,548 4,891
VB S0 228 Exchange difference
- (3,128) 1,367 4,748 264 3,251
SFEBGHER Classified as
EEZ MR AR liabilities
associated with
assets held for
sale - (21,884) - - - (21,884)
A 2015 4 At 31 December
12H31d 2015 18,156 1,054,384 (33,609) (136,641) (95,900) 806,390
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MBERM=E () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32. BEMIE (&) 32. Deferred taxation (continued)
&AL EREF A EIRAER Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
THE A M IE A AR legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
B8 T AR AERR T R[5 — taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
EUHERE - RITeTRHERDE AR offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

R FOE 5L T A AR FE LI
HETARRSY - TYEAE
BERNYIRZ S48 Cat

A E S
2016 2015
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
IRV Deferred tax assets (100,652) (5,962)
IEAEFIE A (H Deferred tax liabilities 735,675 812,352
635,023 806,390
2016 2015
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
IEIERRIEE R (S 12 {F Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
Hizgugml) twelve months - }
IEAERRIEEE (R 12 Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
A& twelve months 928,224 914,145
928,224 914,145
#2016 4 12 H 31 H A& As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
B E AR MR IR AR T A losses amounting to HK$2,417,000 (2015: HK$2,503,000). These tax losses do not expire
2% E R R B under the current tax legislation.

2,417,000 jr (2015 4 :
Al 2,503,000 78) - %
BTG AR B R ER
AIEREIR -
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33.

34.

RHERE

2016 fEAIEIERENE SR
BRI EEE -

9% 20154 11 F 11 HEE
FEEMRHR FIRTEE
HEETRETTIREE

FHERERFHERE
A BE G EEH R
T

HE
VIS ~ 23hh Bt

=
TRIERIHE

SN

3T R -
7,000,000 H5s 358 s

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

33.

34.

Assets held for sale

No non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale for the year ended 31

December 2016.

According to the Board’s written resolution dated 11 November 2015, the Bank agreed to

sell certain premises to BOCHK.

The major classes of assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale

are as follows:

ASSETS
Properties, plant and equipment

LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

Share capital

Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000 ordinary shares
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2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

- 132,729

- 21,884

- 110,845

2016 2015
AT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,144,517 3,144,517
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35. &EOHEHERESMEE  35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) &= R (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow before
KBRS MAY taxation
fR
2016 2015
AT HERTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
LR SF Operating profit 3,311,046 3,238,220
es Depreciation 199,917 222,817
VAR (TR R Net charge of impairment allowances 486,075 633,324
PTELRE XE S [l Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (4,680) (2,150)
s Sk (FUER Advances written off net of recoveries
WS IETER ) (456,602) (1,127,792)
JEEHEH & 3 {5 Change in balances with banks and other
ZIFIERT R HoAh, financial institutions with original maturity
SRRRENSSER over three months
) (5,576,552) 2,430,211
JEEIHA H A 3 {E H Change in placements with banks and other
JIERIT R EHA S financial institutions with original maturity
RS EFHTEI over three months
a0 (7,236,680) 8,865,231
N EE LT AR Change in financial assets at fair value through
7 S RhEE 2 St profit or loss 2,486,261 163,628
e M=) Change in derivative financial instruments 366,960 (232,756)
SR HA IR TE > S Change in advances and other accounts (23,137,199) (4,435,098)
SRIEE 2 ) Change in financial investments (20,456,994) (3,798,709)
HoAth & e ) Change in other assets 3,415,244 (3,282,136)
SRAT R HAr Rl Change in deposits and balances from banks
Tk B4kt S8 and other financial institutions (510,964) (6,774,437)
AEELET AR Change in financial liabilities at fair value
e =N v through profit or loss (1,351,900) (395,337)
BT 5H) Change in deposits from customers 39,265,547 8,628,048
A BRTE Fe HE > ) Change in other accounts and provisions 2,932,208 (2,207,166)
PR E) > SR Effect of changes in exchange rates 616,996 1,152,459
FRIAT&ER e Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before taxation
CRE) RA (5,651,317) 3,079,357
B R = Cash flows from operating activities included:
R
- CUHIE - Interest received 7,329,518 9,337,866
- EAFIR - Interest paid (3,188,492) (4,468,941)
- B R - Dividend received 2,338 7,236
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35. i HEMERMEE  35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(8

(b) HERFRBEH
HE&EFI T

JEEAFER & e R T H
£ 3 H N Z X
SRAT R HA xRl
TERVALER

JREFAHAE 3EH RN
AT e HeAth g
Rl 2 E I

JREIBIEAE 3 {5 A
ZHESF

JREIHIEAE 3 {5 A
ZAFRkEE

36. BAMERRRIE

AR RAIE TS IH
WEATRE LR S E R
SRR 5
I 2 S
e U e
A -

HIFEEEAHA
B SV A R Z SRR
B Sy SRR
HERENEEDE
BN IR
PR
HAthRHE - FEIE B
- LSRR
-14EDLE

{5 B R B

B SR IIREBEE IR
CERT3E (/A AT
o BEHIURN S
HF B RSHENZ
HIPRAFEIE: -

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
within three months

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity within three
months

Treasury bills with original maturity within three
months

Certificates of deposit held with original maturity
within three months

36. Contingent liabilities and commitments

2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

36,566,396 44,060,170
1,592,218 1,205,984
4,908,283 8,556,255
4,501,831 -

47,568,728 53,822,409

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital

adequacy ratio.

Direct credit substitutes
Transaction-related contingencies
Trade-related contingencies
Asset sales with recourse

Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without

prior notice

Other commitments with an original maturity of
- up to one year
- over one year

Credit risk-weighted amount

2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

16,555,219 21,262,146
1,540,154 1,830,203
12,158,792 7,801,271
4,796,235 5,419,397
81,546,051 75,313,331
1,210,783 1,983,255
8,884,742 9,083,933
126,691,976 122,693,536
21,302,109 21,148,878

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity

characteristics of each type of contract.
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37.

38.

BRI 37. Capital commitments
ENCAE I SIN P el The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
2 EARIESENOT ¢ statements:
2016 2015
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
[ e e NEE R T Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 9,230 8,571
A {EH R LY Authorised but not contracted for 1,069 232
10,299 8,803
DL BB A ARIE KR 73 Ryl The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
A B RShE  Be s equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
DIEAEEZ BFEET
T2 -
EETHE & 38. Operating lease commitments
() fERARFEAN (a) As lessee
RN &2 The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments under
HEAL > THlRAR non-cancellable operating leases:
EERRARHE R
WEFRZH ST 2 R
4
2016 2015
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
T R Land and buildings
- A 14 - Not later than one year 249,064 244,631
-1FEM EESFERN - Later than one year but not later than five years 541,158 604,033
-5 Ffk - Later than five years 41,999 92,977
832,221 941,641
HoAth R i Other commitments
- N 1A - Not later than one year 555 877
-1 EE S FER - Later than one year but not later than five years 147 96
832,923 942,614
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(b) fERHFEA
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MR EER B AR EE T
HRANELA iR
STIL SR R AT R A
TR BOEARBIEEZRE K
RRAEE B A -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

38. Operating lease commitments (continued)

(b) As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases:

2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Land and buildings
- Not later than one year 12,351 14,911
- Later than one year but not later than five years 7,377 17,315
19,728 32,226

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits.

39. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of
the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
40. Segmental reporting

(a) By operating segment

AERBER o R U £
B o 3 B0 Ry R
17~ {RSEIRAT ~ MBS

FARE -

{8 A SRAT RO S SR T 3475
G et 2 mAvIR TR
% ([ ASRAITEEB R
BEAZE > mdERT
EBRERBIEE AR
o BENMEERS 0 bR
THEHE  BERE
HARENER - RIE
&~ FIFRFOSPERLT - FF
AEGHMTEHEAEEL
REEEIRIAEA > Ry HAl
EBRIRMAES - AR
TEAE A SRAT AR SEIRT T3
BERATR T ROE B T T
HUSH &S - B3R BG
ZEHE R A XS
5] A R (R R e 1
HE o AN Z PRI
HHEBEGEER > DR
RS AR RIS R
o [BHEEGEEENE
R SEF G 2 [EIHI R &
(MEZ > FALE &
SEBH IR AR B H A
AEERERD -

REEEAEETFEE
S 4% B AT 68 F Y 8%
- BIRNERASEENY)
3 HASEB AR TR I
FPITIRII A5 ERS
ERBESINER - A
ST~ 5 — g (o
Bl) ZEAEFEERE
P H Uz AR TR Y B A
R DHEENIES

PHA ) Ry A2
K EBREFEH B A SRR
HE(E B EL R DO S 5 4 i
BRAYIEH -

— {8 SE B SR AU A RS
> EEEEERERER
FEBRIVIHE - BNVE
HEH - EiigaHEE
oy -

The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services.
Personal Banking serves individual customers while Corporate Banking deals with
non-individual customers. The Treasury segment is responsible for managing the capital,
liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and receives funds from
deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and Corporate Banking. These
inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group. The assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted
to reflect the effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss
information in relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and liabilities
information about Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting units. Charges
are paid to this segment from other business segments based on market rates per
square foot for their occupation of the Group’s premises. The exchange difference
arising from capital of our subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its income
statement, is also included in this class.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of items related to the
Group as a whole and totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items directly
attributable to the segment. For management overheads, allocations are made on
reasonable bases.
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40. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

EASRT IERTT
Personal  Corporate e 52 Eite= Hfth /et BHHES br&
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
BT BT BT BT AR AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Year ended 31 December
2016
Net interest
income/(expense)
- External 307,501 3,009,601 1,217,707 4,534,809 4,534,809
- Inter-segment 558,112 173,881 (731,993)
865,613 3,183,482 485,714 4,534,809 4,534,809
Net fee and commission
income/(expense) 774,215 784,771 14,072 98 (1,085) 1,572,071 1,572,071
Net trading gain/(loss) 37,113 50,907 15,899 32,097 (1,321) 134,695 134,695
Net loss on financial
instruments designated
at fair value through profit
or loss (7,708) (7,708) (7,708)
Net gain on other financial
assets 100,770 92,002 192,772 192,772
Other operating income 128 3 138,393 12,785 151,309 (124,250) 27,059
Net operating income
before impairment
allowances 1,677,069 4,119,933 599,979 170,588 10,379 6,577,948 (124,250) 6,453,698
Net charge of impairment
allowances (99,177) (371,271) (15,627) (486,075) (486,075)
Net operating income 1,577,892 3,748,662 584,352 170,588 10,379 6,091,873 (124,250) 5,967,623
Operating expenses (1,013,932) (1,140,060) (279,794) (184,470) (162,571) (2,780,827) 124,250 (2,656,577)
Operating profit/(loss) 563,960 2,608,602 304,558 (13,882) (152,192) 3,311,046 3,311,046
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties 29,340 29,340 29,340
Net gain from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment 4,136 4,136 4,136
Profit/(loss) before
taxation 563,960 2,608,602 304,558 19,594 (152,192) 3,344,522 3,344,522
At 31 December 2016
ASSETS
Segment assets 39,800,947 153,986,068 147,613,051 7,353,037 179,606 348,932,709 348,932,709
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 96,078,909 173,305,873 38,952,505 4,123 1,906,331 310,247,741 310,247,741
Year ended 31 December
2016
Other information
Capital expenditure - - 211,821 211,821 211,821
Depreciation 11,848 6,016 390 184,466 (2,803) 199,917 199,917
Amortisation of securities (8,708) (8,708) (8,708)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

EASRIT T
Personal Corporate & & EA et =Niieliv] GE
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal ~ Eliminations  Consolidated
AT AT AT AT BT T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#;ZE20154£ 12 H 31 H Year ended 31 December
2015
FFBMA (ZH) Net interest
income/(expense)
- ANER - External (66,016) 2,397,178 2,388,988 - - 4,720,150 - 4,720,150
- B - Inter-segment 980,296 235717 (1,216,013) - - - - -
914,280 2,632,895 1,172,975 - - 4,720,150 - 4,720,150
FIRFE RMEU A~ Net fee and commission
(ZHD income/(expenses) 695,053 596,096 67,101 65 (1,365) 1,356,950 - 1,356,950
AR,/ (B513)  Net trading gain/(loss) 43272 (31,466) 3,345 39,025 a7 54,159 . 54,159
FERLAMESE(EET  Netloss on financial
Az T E instruments designated
FRESTE at fair value through profit
or loss - - (6,382) - - (6,382) - (6,382)
Hitr&ah&E 25Uz Net gain on other financial
assets - 79,531 184,998 - 71,892 336,421 - 336,421
HAEEUTA Other operating income 185 - - 149,052 6,278 155,515 (113,107) 42,408
BEUREEHRT IS  Net operating income
BURA before impairment
allowances 1,652,790 3,277,056 1,422,037 188,142 76,788 6,616,813 (113,107) 6,503,706
TR Net charge of impairment
allowances (106,584) (526,740) - - - (633,324) - (633,324)
TBEBA Net operating income 1,546,206 2,750,316 1,422,037 188,142 76,788 5,983,489 (113,107) 5,870,382
G Operating expenses (953,955)  (1,121,281) (275,988) (205,721) (188,324)  (2,745,269) 113107  (2,632,162)
&ERA (BE) Operating profit/(loss) 592,251 1,629,035 1,146,049 (17,579) (111,536) 3,238,220 - 3,238,220
EYE A EFHE> Net gain from fair value
beelieny adjustments on
investment properties - - - 121,046 - 121,046 - 121,046
e EEYEE - #BF Netloss from disposal/
&3 e o] revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment - - - 19,246 - 19,246 - 19,246
EfRRnEEFl, . (BB Profit/(loss) before
taxation 592,251 1,629,035 1,146,049 122,713 (111,536) 3,378,512 - 3,378,512
2015412 31 H At 31 December 2015
HE ASSETS
A Segment assets 39,504,331 134,505,455 123,466,694 7,458,268 129,316 305,064,064 - 305,064,064
R EERE Assets held for sale - - - 132,729 - 132,729 - 132,729
BEEEEE Total assets 39,504,331 134,505,455 123,466,694 7,590,997 129,316 305,196,793 - 305,196,793
=l LIABILITIES
SEAE Segment liabilities 91,688,294 138,648,224 36,023,296 4,335 1,711,990 268,076,139 - 268,076,139
HEEE &  Liabilities associated with
assets held for sale - - - - 21,884 21,884 - 21,884
A EAa%E Total liabilities 91,688,294 138,648,224 36,023,296 4,335 1,733,874 268,098,023 - 268,098,023
#;ZE 20154£ 12 H31 H Year ended 31 December
2015
HA &R Other information
BN Capital expenditure - - - 77,143 - 77,143 - 77,143
#res Depreciation 16,616 8,849 671 205,711 (9,030) 222,817 - 222,817
Egan: 7] Amortisation of securities - - (120,379) - - (120,379) - (120,379)
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(b) HEHEEERRE ST

UN R AR I 2
B9 S B A8
FIRTZERD BIRIE AR
EECE ST E R

TR ERN 38 -
i Hong Kong
o [ A HE, Mainland of China
HAh, Others
&t Total
HHE Hong Kong
o R A 3, Mainland of China
&5t Total
i Hong Kong
o [5] A HE Mainland of China
HAh Others
=5 Total

(b) By geographical area

40. Segmental reporting (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations of the
subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for
reporting the results or booking the assets:

2016 2015
BB E BT . TRHUR(EEERR]
ZRZBEBA BESR A ZIREEWA BRAA
Net operating eyl Net operating gl
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,949,714 2,582,188 4,054,030 2,823,205
2,451,494 705,399 2,381,416 509,623
52,490 56,935 68,260 45,684
6,453,698 3,344,522 6,503,706 3,378,512
2016
BRAREERIRIE
Contingent
PEE ek IEmEEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
AT AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
213,536,801 185,711,520 6,584,651 40,740,121
135,395,908 124,536,221 814,200 85,951,855
348,932,709 310,247,741 7,398,851 126,691,976
2015
ERREIRE
Contingent
HERE A= IERENEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT BT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
188,707,746 165,544,765 6,733,035 39,662,023
114,108,360 102,324,412 786,367 82,596,097
2,380,687 228,846 2,034 435,416
305,196,793 268,098,023 7,521,436 122,693,536
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41. BEEfEEE 41. Assets pledged as security

72016 4£ 12 H 31 H » As at 31 December 2016, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$3,140,124,000
PN Z B fE & (2015: HK$4,581,856,000 ) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to
3,140,124,000 JT (2015 facilitate settlement operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$
4 AN 4,581,856,000 889,830,000 (2015: HK$478,835,000) were secured by debt securities and bills related to
7T ) BLAERA PR sale and repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure
L DERGEE 2 EEAF these liabilities was HK$4,058,932,000 (2015: HK$5,084,230,000) mainly included in
JERHF - LbAh - AEEEE “Trading assets”, “Financial investments” and “Trade bills”.

Bzl SN E S5
BB > A R
889,830,000 T ( 2015
o #k e 478,835,000
T ) o REE RIS IRILES
BB EESEE
% 4,058,932,000 7T 2015
4 1 k¥ 5,084,230,000
TC) 0 A A T RS MEE
o TemtE, K TE

SR PIBIER -
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MBERRMEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42. &R T EH KN 42, Offsetting financial instruments
TNERYIRAEECIKE 2 The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
TP EE A R AR AR R enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.
BRI K sm T A
1A

2016
FRAREBEEBTTEHZ
AHRREEH

%ﬁ%@g Eg%%%g% Related amounts
R & Eﬂﬁﬁgﬁgﬁ %ﬁ@gﬁ not set off in the balance

LYEEMEE Gross amounts  Net amounts sheet
Gross of recognised of financial BEL
amounts of financial assets SR
recognised liabilities set off presented in SRTHE Cash
financial inthe balance the balance Financial collateral
assets sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
AT AT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HiE Assets
e TR Derivative financial
instruments 527,532 - 527,532 (395,983) - 131,549
Hitn 2 Other assets 923,058 (830,329) 92,729 - - 92,729
1,450,590 (830,329) 620,261 (395,983) - 224,278
2016
FRARBEEEBRRTHEHZ
REEAES Wiliezd
REEEHET Fyreygm  Related amounts
CRssR E> Cmie &fEeyg notsetoff in the balance
=i b BUEEESESE  Net amounts sheet
Gross Gross amounts of financial [Stiiv vl
amounts of  of recognised liabilities HEHS
recognised financial assets presented in SRITH Cash
financial set offin the  the balance Financial collateral
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BT BT BT BT BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
i=Ci-q Liabilities
e T E Derivative financial
instruments 598,744 - 598,744 (395,983) - 202,761
HAr &g Other liabilities 1,254,456 (830,329) 424,127 - - 424,127
1,853,200 (830,329) 1,022,871 (395,983) 626,888
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MEHENE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
42. SRITE S (&) 42. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

2015
%ﬁﬁ@%@%\%ﬁqﬁﬁﬁz
WEEAMED NWEEARE il
RS ORERE LRI SR Related amounts
EEgeR @ARE  mEgy  hotsetol in the balance
GEEHa%E  Gross amounts Net amounts of sheet
Gross of recognised financial BEUELZ
amounts of financial assets 5
recognised liabilities set off presented in SR T HE Cash
financial  in the balance the balance Financial collateral pEzic]
assets sheet sheet _instruments received  Net amount
AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Assets
AR T E Derivative financial
instruments 338,260 - 338,260 (59,230) - 279,030
HAthEzE Other assets 1,352,506 (986,109) 366,397 - - 366,397
1,690,766 (986,109) 704,657 (59,230) - 645,427
2015
KANAEABERPRE
R A fHB 548
REEAlET  PIIRSR Related amounts
CHEeR K CHEle &g notsetoff in the balance
(LA REEELZE Net amounts of sheet
Gross Gross amounts financial [Sieiird
amounts of of recognised liabilities B e
recognised financial assets presented in LRt T E Cash
financial set off in the the balance Financial collateral JREE
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged  Net amount
AT AT T T T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i=Ci-q Liabilities
TEEMTHE Derivative financial
instruments 154,121 - 154,121 (59,230) - 94,891
HAth & Other liabilities 994,352 (986,109) 8,243 - - 8,243
1,148,473 (986,109) 162,364 (59,230) - 103,134
AL TAMSIMTETAR For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and repurchase transactions
MR [EEAS S0 FERsE B 4, entered into by the Group, related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an
o WS4 RS H M E S event of default or other predetermined events occur.

TERVEM > HIR—R 58T 2
o8] < P R PR L
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

43.

44,

Transfers of financial assets

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no transferred financial assets of the Group
that do not qualify for derecognition.

Loans to directors

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2016 2015
BT T ATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
at year end 833 707
Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding during the year 1,079 739
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%= MEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
45. FE > HRE A3 E 45. Significant related party transactions

BFANFIgEAE R General information of the parent companies:

N B B A AR BOCHK, the Group’s former immediate holding company, disposed all its interests in the
F R A Y 4 B Group to Cinda Financial Holdings, a indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of China Cinda.
T o S I The transaction was completed and the share transfer of the Group effected on 30 May
A ETATEESR 2016 (“effective date”).

WEFY 2016 4£ 5 H 30 H
(TAERH ) HETCHE] - K
SR R % H IR

S

7 €2 ] i o B £ A R e g The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-owned financial
1> TS e e A enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by the Ministry of
BRI EEh( T B ) Finance (the “MOF”) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
FErPEE A REFIREC PR ) Hong Kong Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchange").

BB GRS  HR
BIEEER S AR
) (TSRO ) L
25 -

(a) AT KBAT (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
22 ] 2 oAl N = controlled by the parent companies
fTHIRZ 5

() AEELENHATZ () The Group’s former immediate holding company is BOCHK, which is in turn
HIFEERE A E 2T controlled by Bank of China Limited (“BOC”). Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
SREHE > MEEE (“Central Huijin”) is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned
AR P EIRTRY subsidiary of China Investment Corporation (“CIC”) which is a wholly state-owned
ARRAE (" HHE company engaging in foreign currency investment management.

HRAT ) A o rhofr
VESICEHIRET
~E (THES ) 2
PSR T 2 AR
= INETERE
ARFEAF (T
& D IEERIEA
EIRNTE Sk Cd: Dty
Mg A ] - T
ERBEINEE R
HEHEBNEA

TE AT o
[E A F L N Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

B 3 Bl A 1 R

5o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. FE > HRE A3 E 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)

€-))

() BT RRAT
¥ ] 2 A % o
TS (8D

RERSYEAP R IRAT
ET S REE
W5 58 - h
2016 E1 H1HZE
A H SR ERAT
R SRR TS A
BRI AR SE
HL ARy ) Ry R
13,387,000 7T
(2015 4 : BH
90,422,000 7T.) &
¥ 1 45,056,000
7T (2015 4 : 7
141,518,000 7©.) °

RERS S ERAE B
ETRSREE
W 5EE -
20164E1 H1HE
A H R R
AL SR TS A
BRI AR SE
L AR T Ry
1,700,000 It
(2015 4 : BH
3,037,000 7©) &
¥ % 55,251,000
I (2015 4 : il
331,591,000 7T.) -

2016 4E 1 H 1
HZE4XH » K&
EHEETFET
PERE S HEE
185,297,000 T
(2015 4 : FFEH
EH K B
392,600,000 TT &
KEEHEER
S 986,800,000
JC ) MR E FE
IR ERL By
1,758,000 It
(2015 4 : iEF
BB T
Wz 53 B Ry s i
16,422,000 77 K 3#
s 85,600,000
T ) A G —
PRSI T -

(&) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. The
aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the Group arising from these
transactions with BOC from 1 January 2016 to effective date were
HK$13,387,000 (2015: HK$90,422,000) and HK$45,056,000 (2015:
HK$141,518,000) respectively.

The majority of transactions with BOCHK arises from money market activities.
The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the Group arising from these
transactions with BOCHK from 1 January 2016 to effective date were
HK$1,700,000 (2015: HK$3,037,000) and HK$55,251,000 (2015:
HK$331,591,000) respectively.

From 1 January 2016 to effective date, the Group sold cer